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MEMORANDUM FOR DIRECTOR, DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY
DIRECTOR, DEFENSE FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING
SERVICE

SUBJECT: Audit Report on the Defense Commissary Resale Stock Fund Financial Statements
for FY 1992 (Report No. 93-147)

We are providing this final report for your information and use and for use by
Congress. Financial statement audits are required by the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990.
The Act requires the Inspector General to render an opinion on the fairness of the financial
statements of revolving funds such as the Commissary Resale Stocks portion of the Defense
Commissary Agency (DeCA) Defense Business Operations Fund (DBOF). The statements
were to be prepared by DeCA in accordance with DoD accounting policies and procedures and
generally accepted accounting principles. Additionally, we are reporting on the adequacy of
DeCA's internal controls and compliance with laws and regulations. Our audit reviews and
testing were made of the FY 1992 financial accounts and statements for the Commissary
Resale Stock Fund.

We have concluded that the Resale Stock fund part of the DBOF financial statements
and the Notes to the Statements and DeCA Overview do not present fairly the financial
position of the DeCA Resale Stock fund for FY 1992. The statements are not based on a
comprehensive accounting system and include material errors. The Notes to the Statements do
not adequately present DeCA's accounting procedures during FY 1992.

We understand DeCA is aggressively working to improve its financial management
system. However, DeCA will not be able to prepare accurate financial reports in the near
future unless effective action is taken to design and implement a financial reporting system.
Such a system must include adequate internal controls, compatible computer systems,
documented accounting policies and procedures, and the segregation of duties between
accounting and operational organizations. We will be unable to provide the audit assurance
required by the Chief Financial Officers Act and in compliance with financial auditing
standards, until DeCA designs and implements a comprehensive financial system.

The courtesies extended to the audit staff are appreciated. If you have any questions
about this audit, please contact Mr. Robert J. Ryan at (703) 692-3457 (DSN 222-3457) or
Mr. Walter R. Loder, Jr. at (703)692-3387 (DSN 222-3387). The distribution of this report is
listed in Part V, Appendix D.

Robert'J. Lieberman
Assistant Inspector General
for Auditing
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DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY RESALE STOCK FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FY 1992

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction. The Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990 requires an annual audit of the
Financial Statements of the Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA) Resale Stock fund. The
Commissary Resale Stock fund is a revolving fund established for procuring and selling food
and household products to authorized patrons at cost. For FY 1992, the Commissary Resale
Stock fund reported revenue from the sales of goods to the public and other Governmental
agencies of over $6.1 billion and an excess of revenues over expenses of about $132 million.
The agency also reported year end inventories held for resale in excess of $803 million.

Objectives. The initial objectives of the audit were to determine whether the FY 1992
Commissary Resale Stock fund financial statements present fairly the financial position and
results of operation of the fund. Based on the results of our audit survey; we limited our
detailed testing and analysis to selected accounts. We revised our objectives to review controls
over vendor payment authorizations and performed a limited review of inventory
accountability controls. We also performed a desk review of the financial statements and
accompanying notes.

Audit Results. We identified material internal control weaknesses over vendor payments and
inventory accountability. Based on a review of vendor payments authorized during the first
half of FY 1992, we estimated that about 25 percent of $1.6 billion in vendor payment
authorizations were not properly supported and significant duplicate payments of $11 million
for vendor invoices were made. Inventories and inventory accounts were misstated, although
the amount could not be determined. Part IV, Appendix B summarizes the results of our desk
review. Store level controls over inventories were also identified as weak and there was little
assurance that items received were accurately recorded in the general ledger.

Independent Auditor's Opinion. The financial statements and the Notes to the Financial
Statements do not present fairly the financial position of the fund. Although DeCA's records
did not permit the application of generally accepted auditing standards or other tests, our
review disclosed material errors. Notes to the Financial Statements assert that inventories are
misstated. We were unable to perform adequate audit tests because DeCA did not have a
reliable system of internal controls, physical inventories were not taken at October 1, 1991, or
at September 30, 1992, and DeCA had not documented many of its operating and accounting
polices and procedures. Part I contains our opinion on the financial statements.

Internal Controls. DeCA did not begin to document most internal controls and other policies
and procedures until March 1992, 6 months after DeCA was activated as a Defense agency.
For vendor payments and the inventory account, internal controls were not adequate to ensure
that the financial statements were free of material misstatements. Part II contains our report
on material internal control weaknesses.



Compliance with Laws and Regulations. DeCA did not comply with provisions of the
Prompt Payment Act, did not comply fully with the Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act
and did not have accounting systems to properly record and control budgetary and financial
data. Part III contains our findings on compliance with laws and regulations.

Benefits of the Audit. The audit identified material control weaknesses. DeCA took action
to avoid the payment of $191 million in duplicate vendor invoices, initiated action to collect
over $11 million in duplicate payments and to avoid payment of unnecessary interest and
penalties. DeCA paid over $404 million to vendors without adequate supporting
documentation, and in the future will avoid making payments without supporting
documentation. The DeCA internal review function and quality assurance for vendor
payments were improved. The Comptroller of the DoD issued a DeCA financial management
improvement plan partially in response to the audit findings. The Comptroller of the DoD has
ordered physical inventories to be taken at all stores in order to establish beginning balances.

Usefulness of Financial Statements. The reliability and usefulness of the Financial
Statements are questionable. Although we could not ascertain the overall accuracy of the
statements, we did note control problems, which affected the reported numbers, and placed in
doubt the ability of the fund to fairly present an accurate picture of the financial position of the
fund. Accordingly, the usefulness of the statements is questionable. In any event, the audit
will significantly improve the accuracy of future financial information and financial statements.
Also, managers will have more accurate data to use in their decisionmaking processes.

Management Comments. No recommendations are made to revise the financial statements.
We were unable to monetize the full magnitude of accounting errors because of the lack of
supporting documentation and audit trails. Issues regarding compliance with laws and
regulations have been identified to management. We provided Parts II and III to management
on April 29, 1993, and asked for comments by May 14, 1993. Management comments from
DeCA that agree with our internal control results were received on May 19, 1993. We also
suggested changes to the financial statements on April 23, 1993. Management comments were
received on June 1, 1993. Those comments and our response are reproduced in Part V of this
report.

Management Actions. The Comptroller of the DoD ordered physical inventories to be taken

at all DeCA stores to determine the inventory on hand and establish beginning balances. The
Comptroller also initiated action to review and correct DeCA's financial accounting systems.
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Part I - Independent Auditor's Opinion
on the Financial Statements



Independent Auditor's Opinion on the Financial Statements

Introduction

We have audited selected accounts of the Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA)
Resale Stock fund Financial Statements and related Notes to the Statements,
included in the DeCA consolidated statements and the Defense Business
Operating Fund Consolidated Statements (see Part V), as of the year ended
September 30, 1992. The financial statements were prepared by DeCA, based
on financial information provided by the Defense Finance and Accounting
Service (DFAS) - Columbus Center and the 9th Finance Group, Europe. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the statements based on our audit.

Scope

DeCA's records did not permit the application of generally accepted auditing
standards to the financial accounts taken as a whole. We limited our scope to
vendor payment authorizations and inventories. We also performed a review of
the statements to identify mathematical errors, noncompliance with DoD and
OMB guidance on the form and content of the Financial Statements, and the
completeness of the Overview and Notes to the Financial Statements.

An audit includes examining, on test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in financial statements, including accompanying notes. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall Statement presentation.
We developed a client profile for DeCA and developed cycle memorandums
that assessed the internal control structure. This financial statement audit was
made during the period November 1991 through April 1993. See Appendix D
of Part IV for the organizations visited or contacted. We believe that our audit
efforts provide a reasonable basis for our results.

Auditing Standards

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States as
implemented by the Inspector General, Department of Defense, and Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Bulletin No. 93-06, "Audit Requirements for
Federal Financial Statements," January 8, 1993. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Financial Statements are free of material misstatements.



Independent Auditor's Opinion on the Financial Statements

Accounting Principles

Accounting principles are currently being studied by the Federal Accounting
Standards Advisory Board (the Board).  Generally accepted accounting
principles for Federal entities are to be promulgated by the Joint Financial
Management Improvement principals, based on advice from the Board. In the
interim, Federal agencies are to use a comprehensive basis of accounting as
defined in OMB Bulletin No. 93-06. The summary of significant policies
included in the Notes to the Statements describes the accounting principles and
methods of applying those principles that management has concluded are the
most appropriate for presenting the Resale Stock fund's significant assets,
liabilities, net position, results of operations, cash flows, and reconciliation to
the budget.

Independent Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion, the DeCA Resale Stock fund financial statements Overview, the
Financial Statements for FY 1992, and the Notes to the Financial Statements
include material errors and are not complete. In summary the DeCA Overview
disclosed that the inventory account included in the Statement of Financial
Condition is materially overstated (the amount of the overstatement was not
disclosed); the Statement of Financial Condition included $198 million classified
as Accounts Receivable - Federal that should be classified as Funds Available
with Treasury; and the Statement of Operations has misallocated the cost of
goods sold between the cost of goods sold to the public and cost of goods sold
intragovernmental. The cost of goods sold was allocated between the accounts
based on the supply source of the merchandise sold and not the related sales to
customers, as required. The Overview and Notes to the Financial Statements
did not adequately disclose the extent of DeCA's accounting system problems,
the duplicate payments that DeCA authorized, and the extent of invalid
payments to vendors. We have provided a separate memorandum to DeCA
stating our detailed comments (see Part IV, Appendix B).

In our opinion, because of the effects of the matters discussed in the preceding
paragraph, the Resale Stock fund Financial Statements do not present fairly, in
accordance with DoD and OMB guidance, the financial position of the DeCA
Resale Stock fund as of September 30 ,1992.



Independent Auditor's Opinion on the Financial Statements

Other Financial Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the DeCA
Resale Stock fund Financial Statements for FY 1992. The information
presented in the Overview and Supplemental Financial and Management
Information sections are presented for the purpose of additional analysis. Such
information has not been audited by us; but based on a limited review we
believe, as noted above, the Overview and Notes to the Financial Statements are
incomplete or inaccurate.



Part II - Internal Controls



Internal Controls

Introduction

As part of our audit of the DeCA Resale Stock fund Financial Statements for FY 1992,
we audited DeCA's internal control structure for authorizing vendor payments and
exercising inventory accountability.

Objectives and Scope

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted Government auditing
standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States as implemented by the
Inspector General (IG), DoD, and OMB Bulletin 93-06. The standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements are free of material misstatements. We applied the standards as appropriate.

In planning our audit of the DeCA Resale Stock fund for the year ended September 30,
1992, we considered the related internal control structure. The purpose of the planning
work was to determine the auditing procedures we would apply for the purposes of
expressing our opinion on the Financial Statements. Planning work included obtaining
an understanding of the internal control policies and procedures and assessing the level
of control risk relevant to the financial cycles and classes of transactions or account
balances. Planning work also included an evaluation to determine if significant policies
and procedures have been properly designed and placed in operation by performing
sufficient tests to provide reasonable assurance that the controls are effective and
working as designed.

DeCA management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure. In fulfilling its internal control responsibility, management is required to
make estimates and judgments to assess the expected benefits and related costs of
internal control policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure
are to provide management with reasonable but not absolute assurance that obligations
and costs are in compliance with applicable laws; funds, property, and other assets are
safeguarded against waste, loss, and unauthorized use or misappropriation; and
revenues and expenditures applicable to Resale Stock fund operations are properly
recorded and accounted for to permit the preparation of accounts and reliable financial
and statistical reports.

For the purpose of this report, we classified the significant Resale Stock fund internal
control policies and procedures into the following categories.

o General ledger: policies and procedures associated with reconciling general
ledger account balances with subsidiary ledgers and supporting records.

o Inventories: policies and procedures associated with receiving, storing,
issuing, reporting and valuing inventories.



Internal Controls

o Transaction processing: processing and flow of financial data into financial
accounts.

o Financial reporting: policies and procedures used to prepare financial
statements.

Prior Audit Coverage

There have been no prior audits of the DeCA Resale Stock. DeCA and the fund were
established on October 1, 1991.

Audit Conclusion

In our opinion, the DeCA internal control structure was not adequate for controlling
and recording financial information. This deficiency had a material effect on the
financial statements. DeCA did not have an effective financial reporting system that
systematically collected and summarized financial or management information.
DeCA's internal control policies and procedures were not fully documented. Internal
control policies and procedures began to be documented in March 1992, 6 months after
the start of FY 1992. As a result, we limited our tests of specific internal control
procedures to vendor payment authorizations and inventories.

Results of Audit

We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that
we consider to be reportable conditions under the standards established by the
Comptroller General and OMB Bulletin 93-06. Reportable conditions are matters that
come to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an
internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the
organization's ability to ensure that obligations and costs are in compliance with
applicable laws; funds, property, and other assets are safeguarded against waste, loss,
and unauthorized use or misappropriation; and revenues and expenditures applicable to
Resale Stock fund operations are properly recorded and accounted for to permit the
preparation of accounts and reliable financial and statistical reports.  Part IV,
Appendix A to the report summarizes our reports on the audit results.

Documented Policies and Procedures. DeCA did not have documented policies
and procedures for operational and financial internal control systems. DeCA did not
begin to document and implement most policies and procedures until March 1992,
6 months after the start of the fiscal year. As a result, there was little assurance that
the accounting and operational data were systematically and accurately recorded and
reported.

Vendor Payment Authorizations. Internal controls did not ensure that all
vendor payment authorizations processed by the East and West Service Centers were
timely and valid. We estimated that 25 percent of the vendor payment authorizations



Internal Controls

processed from October 1, 1991, through March 1992, were invalid. Additionally,
invoices were paid under fast payment procedures without subsequent verification of
merchandise receipt. DeCA management initiated corrective action that is ongoing.

Inventories. Internal controls did not ensure that inventory general ledger balances
agreed with subsidiary records. There was little assurance that merchandise received
for resale was promptly and accurately recorded in the books and records. DeCA did
not take sufficient physical inventories to determine the beginning or ending balances
for FY 1992.

Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act (FMFIA). DeCA did not fully
implement FMFIA during FY 1992. Additionally, the control environment at DeCA
did not include adequate Internal Review and Inspector General functions. The Internal
Review and Inspector General offices within DeCA were understaffed and the available
staff did not always perform audits or inspections. DeCA issued FMFIA policies and
procedures in March 1992, that are being implemented.

We believe the conditions reported in the preceding paragraphs are material
weaknesses, as defined in DoD Directive 5010.38, "Internal Management Control
Program," April 14, 1987. The Comptroller, DoD, and DeCA management are
continuing to take a wide range of corrective actions to improve the financial reports of
the Agency. Implementation of the actions discussed in Part IV of this report would
correct the identified conditions.

Our evaluation of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all
material internal control weaknesses, especially given the magnitude of problems
discussed in the background and Notes to the Financial Statements.



Part III - Compliance with Laws and
Regulations



Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Introduction

We have reviewed the DeCA Resale Stock fund Financial Statements for the year
ended September 30, 1992. Our detailed testing was limited to vendor payment
authorizations. We also performed limited tests of inventory internal controls.

Objectives and Scope

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted Government auditing
standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States as implemented by the
Inspector General, DoD and OMB Bulletin 93-06. The standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements are free of material misstatements. We applied the standards, as
appropriate, to vendor payment authorizations and inventory internal controls.

Compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the DeCA Resale Stock fund is the
responsibility of management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether
the Resale Stock fund statements are free of material misstatements, we tested vendor
payment authorizations for compliance with DoD Manual 7220.9-M, "DoD Accounting
Manual," and the provisions of the Prompt Payment Act. As part of our audit, we
reviewed management's process for evaluating and reporting on internal controls and
accounting systems as required by the FMFIA, and compared the most recent FMFIA
reports with our evaluation of the internal control system. The laws and regulations we
tested were:

o Prompt Payment Act of 1982, as amended

o OMB Circular A-125, "Prompt Payment"

o DoD Manual 7220.9-M, "DoD Accounting Manual”

o FMFIA of 1982

o Federal Acquisition Regulation

o Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation Supplement

o Policy and Procedures Manual for Guidance of Federal Agencies (Title 2)

o Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990

o OMB Bulletin 93-02, "Form and Content of Financial Statements"

o DoD Guidance on Form and Content of FY 1992 Financial Statements
We also reviewed the entity's policies, procedures, and systems for documenting and

supporting financial, statistical, and other information presented in the overview of the
fund.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Prior Audit Coverage

There have been no prior audits of compliance with laws and regulations related to the
Resale Stock fund. DeCA and the fund were established on October 1, 1991.

Results of Audit

The material noncompliances that we found are summarized below and discussed in
Part IV, Appendix A.

Prompt Payment Act. The Prompt Payment Act requires agencies to pay vendors
promptly and take advantage of all economic discounts offered. With respect to vendor
payment authorizations, DeCA did not comply with the provisions of the Prompt
Payment Act. DeCA did not pay vendors promptly or take advantage of all economical
vendor discounts offered. ‘

OMB Circular A-125. DeCA did not follow procedures in OMB Circular A-125
for determining payment due dates, calculating interest due vendors, and returning
improper invoices to vendors.

DoD Manual 7220.9-M, "DoD Accounting Manual" and Title 2. DeCA
did not comply with DoD Accounting Manual and Comptroller General requirements
for ensuring that vendor payment authorizations were valid. Payments were not
supported by appropriate documentation and internal controls did not ensure that
payments to vendors were not duplicated.

Federal Acquisition Regulation and Defense Federal Acquisition
Regulation Supplement. DeCA did not comply with the provisions of the
regulations for controlling payments to vendors under "Fast Pay" procedures. DeCA
did not ensure that merchandise was actually received when payment was made before
receipt of the receiving report for the merchandise. Additionally, DeCA did not ensure
that all vendor agreements were signed by an authorized contract official and that
changes to vendor agreements were documented and appropriately authorized.

FMFIA of 1982. DeCA disclosed in its FY 1992 annual report that it did not
comply with all FMFIA requirements in FY 1992. However, DeCA took action to
comply with the provisions of the FMFIA, OMB, and DoD implementing guidance.
DeCA issued implementing guidance in March 1992.

With respect to items not tested, DeCA's financial systems did not comply with the
Comptroller General, DoD Accounting Manual and OMB requirements. Automated
data processing system deficiencies prevented DeCA from implementing a
comprehensive and systematic accounting and financial management reporting system.
The notes to the Financial Statements disclose significant organizational startup
problems that DeCA and DoD management are addressing.

11
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Appendix A. Summary of Management
Memorandums and Reports

The following is a summary of the memorandums and reports we issued to DeCA
during the period of our audit of the Resale Stock fund Financial Statements. The
reports were intended to assist management in its financial statements for FY 1992.

o Inspector General, DoD, "Management Advisory Memorandum-Controls
Over Vendor Payments and Related Transactions for the Defense Commissary
Agency's FY 1992 Resale Stock Fund Financial Statements,” March 17, 1992,
provided preliminary results of our review of internal controls over vendor payments
and the reliability of DeCA's financial data. Our memorandum reported that payment
authorization vouchers were not supported by invoices, matching receiving reports, and
other supporting documentation. We also found large quantities of uncontrolled
invoices, lack of computer availability, inadequate ADP controls, and lack of controls
over data entered at commissaries. The memorandum suggested that DeCA document
and enforce its operational policies and improve compliance with the Prompt Payment
Act of 1982. In response, DeCA stated that proper procedures and policies had already
been implemented but additional guidance would be prepared. DeCA also stated that
its policy is to pay only proper invoices and receipts in compliance with the Prompt
Payment Act. Further, DeCA blamed automated data processing (ADP) complications
on operating software problems, storage, and equipment.

o Inspector General, DoD, "Management Advisory Memorandum-Duplicate
Vendor Payments, Audit of the FY 1992 Resale Stock Fund Financial Statements,"
May 4, 1992, provided audit results of preliminary work in the vendor payments area.
The memorandum concluded that internal controls were inadequate to ensure that
authorized vendor payments did not result in duplicate vendor payments. It suggested
that DeCA use only appropriately trained personnel to enter valid invoice data that
show invoice numbers compatible with DeCA's bill paying system. The memorandum
also suggested that receipt information be entered only at the commissaries and that
commissary store employees delay reentry of receipt information until signed written
verification of a proper reversal can be obtained. The memorandum further suggested
that DeCA develop edit checks to identify possible duplicate payments and establish
quality control programs to ensure that payments are adequately supported. DeCA
concurred with the suggested actions and took action to correct the identified
conditions.

o Inspector General, DoD, "Management Advisory Memorandum - Control
Environment, Audit of the FY 1992 Resale Stock Fund Financial Statements,"
September 29, 1992, discussed the usage of the internal review and Inspector General
(IG) staffs of DeCA. The memorandum suggested that all DeCA IG personnel work
on appropriate oversight projects and not operational projects. It also suggested that
DeCA instruct regional auditors to report to the Chief of the Internal Review Office
(IRO) and that the Chief of IRO report to the Deputy Director or Director. Further,
the memorandum suggested that DeCA conduct an evaluation of staffing resources
needed to operate an effective internal oversight mission. DeCA concurred with the
suggested actions and is taking action to correct the identified conditions.

14



Appendix A. Summary of Management Memorandums and Reports

o Inspector General, DoD, Audit Report No. 93-028, "Quick-Reaction Report
on Physical and System Security at the East Service Center of the Defense Commissary
Agency," November 30, 1992, reported that DeCA's East Service Center had not
developed written policies and procedures on security and had not established a
formal security program. The report stated that minimum security requirements
included provisions for the accountability of users; password protection; security
training and awareness; and physical control of hardware, software, and data. The
report recommended that DeCA limit the system administrator's access to data bases;
develop password generation procedures; start conducting security entrance and exit
briefings and a training program; establish criteria to determine who is allowed access
to the computer room; and establish a contingency plan for alternate site processing.
DeCA management concurred with four of the five report suggestions. DeCA did not
concur with limiting access of the systems administrator but did propose alternative
action, which was acceptable. The Director stated that DeCA can initiate action to
bond or certify system administrators at a level consistent with the access requirements
of their position.

o Inspector General, DoD, memorandum on "Inventory Accounting, Audit of
the FY 1992 Defense Commissary Agency Resale Stock Fund Financial Statements,"
February 25, 1993, discussed conditions that included automated data systems
processing problems related to inventories, the inability to reconcile physical
inventories to accounting records, inadequate internal controls such as the lack of
policies and procedures, and inadequate staffing. As a result, DeCA monthly financial
statements included unusual and misstated account balances. We suggested that DeCA
prepare internal control procedures, including comparing daily store inputs to the actual
postings to the financial records; perform physical inventories every 6 months; develop
procedures for performing the inventories; and evaluate the staffing needed to
effectively maintain and reconcile inventory accounts. DeCA concurred with our
suggested actions, except for taking inventories every six months. DeCA is taking
action to correct the identified conditions.

o Inspector General, DoD, Audit Report No. 93-124, "Controls Over Vendor
Payments, Returned Checks, and Rebates," March 25, 1993, provides that DeCA did
not adequately control financial transactions related to payments to vendors. Contract
administration procedures did not provide assurance that information in the Standard
Automated Vouchers Examination System (SAVES) data base was supported by valid
contractual documents. Further, vendor invoices were paid without required validation
of receipt, checks received from fast payment vendors and returned U.S. Treasury
checks were not adequately controlled, and controls over rebates from cigarette vendors
were inadequate. As a result, the DeCA financial statements could be materially
misstated.

We recommended that DeCA issue or modify contract administration procedures,
modify its fast payment procedures to ensure that the receipt of vendors' merchandise is
verified and that prompt feedback on any deficiencies of fast payment vendors is
provided to the contracting officers, require that vendor checks be endorsed and
deposited promptly, and require that vendor checks and returned U.S. Treasury checks
be promptly and properly accounted for. We also recommended that DeCA record the
estimated rebates due from cigarette vendors as an accounts receivable on the financial
records, periodically reconcile the actual vendor rebates received with the recorded
accounts receivable amount, and separate the duties of personnel responsible for
contracting for cigarette rebates from personnel receiving rebate checks. DeCA

15



Appendix A. Summary of Management Memorandums and Reports

concurred or partially concurred with our recommendations and provided dates for
corrective actions to be accomplished. DeCA proposed acceptable corrective actions,
except for our recommendation to remove expired contracts from the SAVES control
data base. During subsequent discussions with DeCA, management agreed to remove
expired contracts from SAVES after completion of their financial management
improvement plan.

o Inspector General, DoD, memorandum on "Noncompliance of Defense
Commissary Agency Financial Statements with OMB Bulletin 93-02," April 23, 1993,
discussed issues disclosed during our desk review of the FY 1992 Defense Commissary
Business Operations fund Financial Statements. Appendix B is a copy of the document
provided to DeCA stating our concerns.

o Inspector General, DoD, Audit Report No. 93-096, "The System Used By
the Defense Commissary Agency to Pay Vendors' Invoices," May 14, 1993, provides
that DeCA's system for paying vendors' invoices was not timely and that DeCA had
not reassessed its existing staffing levels to redetermine the number of ADP personnel
needed to support current or future information systems. We recommended that the
Director revise DeCA Directive 70-10 to require service centers and commissaries to
improve the bill-paying process. We also recommended that the Assistant Secretary of
Defense (Production and Logistics) request an independent study to determine the
proper staffing level of DeCA's ADP operation. Management comments were
responsive and management acted on all recommendations.

o Inspector General, DoD, Audit Report No. 93-135, "Controls Over Vendor
Payment Authorizations by the Defense Commissary Agency," June 30, 1993. Based
on our sample derived from $1.6 billion in CONUS only vendor payments in the first
half of FY 1992, DeCA management did not provide adequate internal controls over
vendor payment transactions. Specifically, DeCA's vendor payment process lacked the
internal controls necessary to ensure that all payment authorizations for vendor invoices
were authorized, valid, and accurate. Additionally, DeCA did not adhere to the
requirements of the Prompt Payment Act and OMB Circular A-125, "Prompt
Payment." We recommended that DeCA evaluate its employees on the implementation
of internal controls, prepare and execute a written bill paying plan to exercise quality
control over bill paying, document computer systems, and move financial functions
under the operational control of the Director, Resource Management. We also
recommended that controls be established to ensure that service center personnel meet
the Prompt Payment Act requirements. The Director, DeCA, concurred with the audit
recommendations. However, the Director did not indicate the action taken to include
additional computer edit checks in the bill paying system and did not indicate that a
written plan to improve quality control over bill paying had been written and
implemented. We have requested the Director to provide additional comments in
response to the final report.
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Final Report
Page No.

Appendix B. Suggested Changes to the Defense
Commissary Agency Financial
Statements

Inspector General, DoD, memorandum on "Defense Commissary Agency Financial
Statements,", April 23, 1993, provided our position on the financial statements. The
memorandum discussed our concerns about DeCA's statements based on a desk review.
We did not audit, and we do not express an opinion on the statements for the Business
Operations fund and consolidated statements. We have cross-referenced the following
paragraphs to Part IV of this report.

I. Resale Stock Fund

I.A. The Overview to the Financial Statements

I.A.1. OMB Bulletin 93-02 states that the Overview is part of the financial statements

and should report on the results of operations and provide the effect on DeCA's 41
performance indicators. DeCA's Overview omits information such as bill paying
practices used during the first 10 months of FY 1992 and the effect of bill paying
problems on its performance indicators. The Overview describes procedures in effect

at the end of the year for bill paying.

I.LA.2. DeCA's Overview should describe the effect of start up problems on the
performance indicators, for such accounts as Discounts Earned (98 percent goal versus
86 percent actual) and Interest Paid (.03 percent goal versus .14 percent actual). DeCA
does not make any reference to the amount of suspected duplicate payments
($17 million) or the value of lost discounts.

I.LA.3.  With respect to the Standard Automated Voucher Examination System
(SAVES), the Overview states that "the systems were selected because tests proved 46
they could process DeCA's consolidated workload volume.” DeCA officials could not
provide us with test documentation. Further, some cognizant DeCA personnel
maintain that the volumes tested were not truly representative of the volume of
transactions to be processed by DeCA. The Overview should be modified and not say

that the systems were selected because tests proved they could process DeCA's
workload volume. The Overview should describe the excessive downtime and long
overnight processing times that affected data entry access and vouchers examiners
access to SAVES, and contributed to the vendor payment problems.

I.A.4. DeCA's Overview states, "In the service center's bill paying organization, the
invoice is reviewed to determine if it meets the requirements for a proper invoice set

forth in OMB Circular A-125. If not, it is returned to the vendor with a letter  *’
explaining the problem." DeCA's Overview should disclose the improper procedures

used to accomplish bill paying. During the fall of 1991 improper invoices were
retained at the service centers for correction. Further, the date DeCA corrected the
invoice was entered as the date DeCA received the invoice from the vendor.
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Improper invoices were not returned to vendors in accordance with requirements of the
Prompt Payment Act and vendors had no opportunity to correct their invoices to obtain
prompt payment. DeCA's overview also stated, "Improper invoices are returned to the
vendor within the timeframe set forth in OMB Circular A-125 and do not incur
interest.” This statement discloses current practice, but does not reflect procedures in
effect during the fall and winter of 1991 and 1992.

I.A.5. DeCA's overview should describe earlier procedures during the fall of 1991
and winter of 1992 with regard to reconciliations between invoices and receipts.
Different procedures were used during the period of bill paying problems in FY 1992
than were disclosed in the Overview.

1.A.6. The Overview does not mention that because of the bill paying problems,
outdated contracts were retained in SAVES during FY 1992 beyond the time frames
normally permitted.

I.A.7. DeCA's overview states, "It is the opinion of this Agency that inventories are
significantly overstated in the financial records.” We suggest that DeCA use the phrase
"we believe" rather than "it is our opinion.” The auditor's opinion should be the only
opinion included in the financial statements in order to avoid confusing the reader. If
DeCA can determine or estimate the overstatement of inventory, it should provide the
information in the Overview and based on the degree of supporting evidence
considering adjusting the financial statements.

50

I.B. The Financial Statements

I.B.1. The Statement of Operations. Resale Stocks and Consolidating Statements.
DeCA's cost of goods sold should be stated in accordance with OMB Bulletin 93-02.
DeCA's cost of goods sold account was allocated between the public and
intragovernmental on the basis of obligations to the Federal government. However,  ss
OMB Bulletin 93-02 requires that the cost of goods sold be based on the cost of sales to
customers, not the activities the goods were purchased from. This error causes
significant misstatement in the financial statements as shown in the table below.

Public Intragovernmental

(000) (000)
Revenue from the Sale of Goods $6,005,021 $ 152,004
Cost of Goods Sold 5,053,117 976,638
Profit (Loss) $_951,904 $(824.634)

DeCA did not realize a profit of $951 million on sales to the public nor lose
$824 million on intragovernment sales. These amounts are material to DeCA's
financial statements and should be adjusted.

I.B.2. The Statement of Operations for the Resale Stock fund shows $4,228,198 in
Other Revenues and Financing Sources. However, this amount is the result of netting
$17.3 million in inventory losses against $21.5 million in Other Revenues primarily
derived from coupons. The $17.3 million should be shown on line 12, bad debts and
write offs. The amount of other revenues should be $21.5 million. The nature of the

88
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other revenues should be disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The
misstated accounts in the resale stock statements carry over into the Consolidated
Statements as errors.

I.B.3. Statement of Financial Position. The Overview states that Accounts
Receivable-Federal for Resale Stocks is overstated by $198,079,000 for unconfirmed
deposits. This amount has been sent for deposit in financial institutions, but the deposit 51
tickets have not been forwarded through the commissaries to Defense Finance and
Accounting Service (DFAS)-Columbus Center for credit to DeCA's account.

The unconfirmed deposits represent amounts that are U.S. Treasury cash, but are not
yet recognized by the U.S. Treasury. Some of the deposits were in transit or not yet
accounted for by the financial institutions on September 30, 1992. The unconfirmed
deposits should be shown as Other, Non-Federal Financial Resources and explained in
the Notes to the Financial Statements. OMB Bulletin 93-02 requires the separate
reporting of Federal intragovernmental items to facilitate the preparation of government
wide consolidated financial statements. Since the $198 million does not represent an
amount due from a Federal agency on September 30, 1992, the amount should not be
shown as a Federal intragovernmental item.

I.C. Footnotes to the Financial Statements

I.C.1. Resale Stocks. Footnote disclosure should be made of the change funds held at
the commissaries. DeCA staff said that change funds kept at the commissaries are
reported by local disbursing officers, not DeCA. However, DeCA physically controls
the monies. The amount held and the reason for not including such monies in the
Statement of Financial Position should be disclosed in the Notes to the Financial
Statements. We estimate that DeCA could have about $6 million in change funds
($16,000 per commissary times 384 stores).

Operations Fund

II.LA. Overview. No comments are made concerning Operations disclosures in the
Overview at this time.

I1.B. Financial Statements

II.B.1. Statement of Operations. DeCA's Notes to the Financial Statements disclose
that DeCA did not process $64.56 million in year end accruals for specific types of
expenses and that expenses for commissary operations are understated by $64.56
million. DeCA staff explained that the expenses were not accrued because of
limitations in DeCA's accounting system. The $64.56 million is material to the
financial statements taken as a whole, and nonaccrual of $64.56 million causes
misstatement of the financial statements including the Statements of Operations,
Financial Position, and Budget and Actual Expenses.

IL.LB.2. Total Expenses of $1,027,281,818 on the Statement of Operations for
Operations is incorrectly enclosed by parentheses which would indicate a negative
balance instead. The amount was carried forward correctly to the Consolidated
Statement and added correctly on the Statement of Operations. The error is still a
significant one for the financial statements.
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I1.B.3. Statement of Financial Position. Equipment Valuation. The valuation of
equipment in the financial statements does not agree with the trial balance. The
$48,025 misstatement affects the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Operations, Statement of Cash Flows, and Statement of Budget and Actual Expenses.
The error carries forward into the Consolidating Statements.

I1.B.4. Operations. Typographical and Other Errors. There were small typographical
errors of figures in the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Operations, and
Statement of Cash Flows. The errors were not included in totals. Figures that agree
with the trial balance are included in the totals and carried forward to the Consolidating
Statements.

II.C. Footnotes to the Financial Statements. Footnote 7 to Commissary Operations
and Footnote 9 to the Business Operations Fund reflect the allocation of $878 million in
operating expenses in CONUS based on the percentage of total expenses by line item
for the Midwest Region. OMB Bulletin 93-02 states, "Financial statements shall be the
culmination of a systematic accounting process." OMB Bulletin 93-02 also requires,
"... to the extent possible, expenses should be classified and reported by major type of
program. Agencies that are able to do so should also disclose operating expenses by
object classification in the notes to the principal statements." DeCA did develop actual
expense data for the Midwest Region and had actual data for Europe. The expenses
should be disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements including an explanation of
what is represented. However, extrapolating from one region to the other five CONUS
regions with percentage estimates is not an appropriate basis for reporting expenses by
object classification. DeCA staff stated that actual expense information was not
developed for the rest of CONUS because of the lack of staff and time involved.
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to Suggested Changes

DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY
~EADQUARTERS
FORT LEZ VIRGINIA :2B01-6300

SN 135S

MEMORANDUM FOR INSPECTOR GENERAL, LOGISTICS SUPPORT DIRECTORATE,
400 ARMY NAVY DRIVE, ARLINGTCON, VA 22202-2884

SUBJECT: Defense Commissary Agency Financial Statements

Reference: DeDIG Memorandum, dtd April 23, 1992, SAB.

e have reviewed the comments provided by referenced
memorandum that contains recommended changes to the DBOF Financial
Statements, and furnished a copy to the O©CSD Comptrocller for
assistance in developing this response. Qur comments to vour
recommended changes are provided at attachment 1. For information
purposes, the comments furnished by the OSD Director for Accounting
Policy are enclosed as attachment Z.

/’Zléz;&Q Z-ALLALéZ'/
RICHARD E. ZEALE, J
“Yajor General, USA/

Cirector

Attacnments:
As Stazed

CF: OASD (PRODUCTION AND LOGISTICS:
ASD, Acting DASD (PERSONNEL, SUPPORT, FAMILY \ND ZZUCATION)

o
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DeCA COMMENTS TO DoDIG RECOMMENDED CHANGES

Comment I.A.l: Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Bulletin 93-
02 states that the Overview is part of the financial statements and
should report on the results of operations and provide the effect
on Agency performance indicators. DeCA’s Overview omits
information such as bill paying practices during FY 1992 and the
effect of bill paving problems upon its performance indicators.
The Overview describes procedures in effect at the end of the year
for bill paying, but needs to include many of the bill paying

procedures followed during the year.

Response: Nonconcur. OMB Bulletin 93-02, in Appendix B, paragraph
A (first paragraph, third sentence) provides, when referring to the
“Overview", that "I+ should also include program and administrative
highlights and may also highlight criticai areas for financial and
management improvement." The Overview which includes a "Financial
Impact of Start-Up Problems” section satisfies the OMB requirement.

Comment I.A.2: DeCA’'s Overview should describe the effect of
start-up problems on the performance indicators, Discounts Earned
(98 percent goal versus 86 percent actual) and Interest paid (.03
rercent goal versus .14 percent actual). DeCA does not make any
reference to the amount of suspected duplicate payments (S$17
millien) or to the value of invoices ($191 million) written off due

to dupiicate entries.

Response: MNonconcur for the reasons stated in item I.A.l.

Comment I.A.3: Wwith respect to the Standard Autcmated Voucher
Examination System (SAVES), the Cverview states that "the systems
were selected because tests proved they could process DeCA’s
consolidated worklcad volume." However, no official at DeCA could
provide us with documentation of these tests. Further, certain
DeCA persocnnel maintain that the volumes tested were not truly
representative of the volume of transactions to Lbe processed by
DeCA. The Overview should not say the systems were seiected
because tests proved they could process DeCA’‘s workload volume.
The Overview shoulid describe the excessive downtime and long
overnight processing times that affected data entry access and
voucher examiners access to SAVES, and contributed to the vendor

payment problems.

Response: Partially concur. The sentence will =e reworded to
state "the systems were selected because of thexir ability to
crocess DeCA’s consoiidated workload volume..." Nonconcur -/ith the
latter recommendati.cn for the reasons stated in item I.A.l.

Comment I.A.4: DeCx’'s Overview should disclose the procedures used
-9 accompliish bill caying during much of FY 1992. Ffor exampie, the

Jverview states 'In the service center‘s bill paying organization,

1

«ttachment 1
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the invoice is reviewed to determine if it meets the requirements
for a proper invoice set forth in OMB Circular A-125. If not, it
is returned to the vendor with a letter explaining the problem.”
However, during the fall of 1991 improper invoices were retained at
the service centers for correction. The invoices were entered into
the SAVES and the date DeCA corrected the invoices was entered as
the date DeCA received the invoice from the vendor.

Improper invoices were not returned to vendors within the
requirements of the Prompt Payment Act and vendors had no
opportunity to correct their invoices to obtain prompt payment. A
later statement in the Overview also discloses current practice but
does not reflect procedures in effect during the fall and winter of
voices are returned to the vendor within

1991~1992. "Improper in

the timeframe set forth in OMB Circular A-125 and do not incur
interest."”

Response: lNonconcur. The Office of Manacement and Budget, in a

memorandum dated, February 5, 1992, advises that, "The Overview of
the Reporting Entity will be the first and for many readers (e.g.,
non-accountants and high-level decision makers) perhaps the only
part of the Annual Financial Statement that will be read. It must
provide readers with a clear and concise understanding of the
reporting entity’s activities, accomplishments, financial results
and condition, problems, and needs. It should tell the reader
whether and how well the mission of the reporting entity is being
accomplished and what, if anything, needs to be done to improve
either program performance or financial performance." Corrective
action on many of the previous problems has already been taken; and
omission of the suggested statements does not appear to violate

OMB’s direction.

Recommendation I.A.5: 2eCA should descr:ize earlier procedures
during the fall of 1391 and winter of 1992 with regard to
reconciliations between invoices and receipts. Different
procedures were used during the period of zill paying problems in
FY 1992 than were disclcsed in the Overview.

Response: lonconcur for the reasons stated in item I.A.4.
Comment I.A.6: The Overview does not menticn that because of the
bill paying problems, cutdated contracts were retained in SAVES

during FY 1992 beyond the timeframes norma.ly permitted.

llonconcur for —he reasons stated in item I.A.4.

Response:

Comment I.A.7: DeCA’'s cverview says "it .s the opinion of this
Agency that inventories are significantly overstated in the
financial records.” ‘ie suggest that CelA use the rhrase "we

believe" rather than "i: 1s ocur opinion.' The auditor’s opinion
shoulid be the only opinicn ianciuded in the Zizancial statements in

order to avoid confusing the reaader. IZ Z2CA can determine or

2
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estimate the overstatement of inventory, it should provide the
information in the Overview and based on the degree of supporting
evidence consider adijusting the financial statements.

Response: Concur. The clause will ke deleted.

The Statement of Operations. Resale Stocks and
Consolidating Statements. DeCA’s Cost of Goods Sold should be
stated in accordance with OMB 93-02. DeCA’s Cost of Goods Sold was
allocated between public and intragovermnmental on the basis of
oblications to the Federal Government. However, OMB 93-02 requires
that <=-he Cost of Goods Sold be based on the cost of sales to
custczers, not the activities the goods were purchased from. This
error -auses significant misstatement in the financial statements.

Comment I.B.l:

Response: Concur. The re-allocaticn of Costs of Goods Sold has
been --zurnalized and the statements revised to reflect the proper

distr-cution based on cost of sales.

Comment 1.B.2. The Statement of Operations for the Resale Stock
Fund snows $4,228,198 in Other Revenues and Financing Sources.
However, this amount is the result =f netting $17.3 million in
anen:cry losses against $21.5 millicn in Other Revenues primarily
derived from coupons. The $17.3 million should be shown on line
12, Sad Debts and Write Offs. The amount of Other Revenues should
be disclosed in the HNotes. The misstated accounts in the Resale
Stocks statements carry over into the Consolidated Statements as

errors.

Response: Concur. Other Revenues and Financing Sources has been
redistributed on the Statement of Crerations to incorporate the

Auditcr’s recommendations.

Comment I.B.3. Statement of Financial Position. The Overview
states that Accounts Receivable~Federal for Resale Stocks 1is
oversctated by §$198,079,000 for unconfirmed deposits. This amount
has cteen sent for deposit in financial institutions, but the
depos=z tickets have not been forwarded through the commissaries to
Defense Finance and Accounting Service (DFAS)-Columbus Center for
crediz to DeCA’s account. The unconfirmed deposits represent
that really are Treasury Cash, but are not yet recognized
by Treasury. Some of the deposits were in transit or not yet
accocunted for by the financial institutions on Septemper 30, 1992.
These :nconfirmed deposits should be shown as Other, Non-Federal
Finarc:al Resources and explained in the Notes. OMB Bulletin 93-02
requir=2s the separate reporting of Federal Intragovernmental items
to ~fz=ilitate the preparation of sovernment-wide consolidated

financ-al statements. Since the $198 million does not represent an
amounrn=z due from a Federal Agency on September 30, 1992, the amount
shoulZ not be shown as a Federal Intragovernmental item. The only
reasc~ <o not reflect the unconfirmed deposits as cash or other
rhat DeCA has peen instructed to show no casn

amouncts

monetzry assets is

3
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assets on its statement of financial position. This issue will be
discussed between CcoDIG, the DBOF, and OSD(C}).

The Statements of Financial Pesition and Cash
Flows are being adjusted to show the unconfirmed deposits as
Financial Resources, Other, Non-~Federal. Disclosure will be added
to the footnotes, and deleted from the Overview.

Response: Concur.

Comment I.C.1l: Resale Stocks. Footnote disclosure should be made
of the change funds held at the commissaries. DeCA staff said that
change funds kept at the commissaries are reported by local
disbursing officers, and are not reported by DeCA. However, DeCA
physically controls these monies. The amount held and the reason
Zor not including such monies in the Statement of Financial
Position should te disclosed in the Notes to <the Financial
Statements. We est:mate that ZeCA could hold $6 mililion in change
“unds (516,000 per —ommissary times 384 stores).

Response: Partially concur. A footnote disclosure will be added
o i) explain that change Zunds held at the ccmmissary stores
though controlled 3=y DeCA, are under accountapility of local
disbursing agents, :1) disciose operational guideiines for change
fund requirements. However, actual amounts held in the stores vary
according to local installation guidelines. An estimate arrived at
using the auditor’s technique could result in significant over-or
understatement of =—zange funds managed within the Agency.

Comment II.B.l. [eCA’s Notes to the Financial Statements discliose
“hat $64.56 million in year-end accruals for specific expense types
were not processea Sy the Agency and that expenses for Commissary
Operations are understated tv this amount. DeCA staff explained
that the expenses were not accrued because of limitations of DeCA’s
accounting system. The $64.36 nillion is material o the financial
statements taken zs a whole, and non-accrual cf $64.56 million
causes misstatement of the Zinancial statements Including the
Statements of Operations, Firnancial Position, and Buddet and Actual

Expenses.

Response: Partiailv concur. 2roblems with the CCNUS accounting
system precluded classifying azd recording of actual expenses, and
-he value of $64.56 million was developed as an early estimate of
understated expenses, However, the $64.56 million constitutes only
an estimate derived from by ZeCA sources, cannot ze supported by
detail performance data, and .s now believed to Ce understated.
“asufficient documentation ex:sts to first validate an estimated
amount. by which exrenses are :nzerstated, then perZcrm an estimated
distribution by ob7ject classiZ:ization. Although we concur that the

understated expenses are Lkztn material and shouid otherwise be
included in the statements, e are reluctant to include data of
such a speculative nature in z2e financial statements.
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We have presented the void in recording and classifying
expenses as part of the Overview, Impact of Start-up Problems. In
so doing, we have "highlighted critical areas for financial and
management improvement" in compliance with OMB Bulletin 93-02,
Appendix B, paragraph A, and believe that a footnote disclosure of
this item is adequate. The footnote will be revised to i) disclose
that expenses are believed to be understated by at least $64.56
million and ii) inciude the statement "Systems to capture and
report expenses by object class are in the process of being

developed.

Total exwenses of $1,027,281,818 on the Statement
of Operations for Operations |is incorrectly enclosed by
parentheses. The amount 1s carried ZIZorward correctly on the
Statement of Operations. This error is still a significant error

for the financial statements.

Comment II.B.2.

Response: Concur. The typographical error has been corrected.

Comment II.B.3: Statement of Financial Position. Equipment
vValuation. The valuation of equipment in the financial statements
does not agree with the trial balance. The $48,025 misstatement
effects the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Operations, Statement of Cash Flows, and Statement of Budget and
Actual Expenses. The error carries forward into the Consolidating

Statements.

Response: Partially concur. The recording error of $48,025, a
balance sheet entry, is not material to the UBOF financial
statements. Though acknowledged, no adjustment has been made to
the financial statements because the valuation of fixed assets,
which is the basis for the amount shown cn the trial balance was
determined to be invalid after publication of the statements.
Efforts underway to determine correct vaiues of DeChA fixed assets
are disclosed in the Overview under Property, Plant and Equipment.

Comment II.B.4. Operations. Typograpnical and Other Errors.
There were small typcoraphical errors of figures in the Statement
of Financial Positicn, Statement of Operations, and Statement of
Cash Flows. These errors were not inciuded in totals. Figures
that agree with the trial balance are included in the totals and
carried forward to the Cocnsolidating Statements.

Response: Concur. Corrective action will be taken.

Comment II.C. Footnotes to the Financial Statements. ZIootnote 7
to the Ccmmissary Cperations and Footnote 3 to <zhe Business
Operations Fund reflect the allocation of €878 millicn in operating
expenses in the CONUS tased on the percentage of totali exvenses Dy
line item fcr the Midwest Region. ©OMB Bulletin 93-3Z states that
“Financial Statements snail be the culimination of =z systematic
accounting grocess. ' JMB 93-02 also requires that '...to the

5

26



Appendix C. DeCA Response to Suggested Changes

extent possible, expenses should be classified and reported by
major type of program. Agencies that are able to do so should also
disclose operating expenses by object classification in the notes
to the principal statements.” DeCA did develop actual expense data
for the Midwest Region and had actual data for Europe. Those
expenses should be disclosed in the Notes including an explanation
of what is represented. However, extrapolating from one region to
the other five CONUS regions with percentage estimates is not an
appropriate basis for reporting expenses by object classification.
DeCA staff said actual expense information was not developed for
the rest of CONUS because of the lack of staff and time involved.

Response: Nonconcur. Expense-like data (i.e., accrued
expenditures) was used to estimate expenses for the Midwest region,
and not actual expense data as stated in the finding. The

estimates used Zor one CCNUS region add no value to the disclosure
for the same reasons ocutlined in the response to II.3.l.-- not only
is the information comprised of estimates, but it is also known to
be significantly understated. The footnote wiil be revised to more
appropriately state "The Defense Commissary Agency 1s unable to
capture expenses by object class accurately at this time. Systems
to capture and report expenses by object class are in the process

of being developed.*®
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PURPOSY: 7o obta:n

OFFICE OF THE TCSMPTROLLER CF THE DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

WASHINGTON DX 23301-1100

MAY |7 193
Management Systems)
COVER BRIZF
20: OEPUTY COMPTROLLER (MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS)
FROM: DIRECTCR FCR ACCOUNTING POLICY A £ - 7)7{ &/

SUBJECT: Defense Ccommissary Agency Flnanc:al Statements

urrence on recommended acticsns to DoDIG
eccians o DeCA financial statements.

cace
=294

requesced <

SISCUSSICN:

~re -efense Commissary Agency (DeCA) received & zemorandum
frcm the Office =£ the Inspesctor Generali, dated April 23,
1993, requesting cnat porticns of the £financial statemencs
me corrected. -eCA referred the memorandum to =nis cifice
pricr to responding to the DeDIG. The significanct
correcticns are summarized below and the individual requescs

are attached:

s® Cverview of the Reporting Entity. The DoDIG suggests
tnat the Overview include negative informaticn cn DeCA
sperations sucn as pill ;aying practices during FY 1992
and the effecz cf£ Sill raying problems upon agency
serformance :ngicators (CoDIG Findinga I.A.L tnzsugn

I.AL7)
s® Principal Statements. The Statement cf Flrancial
Fogition shows deposits in transi:z £ S188 mi.l.2n as
accounts receivaole (DeDIG Finding I.3.3).

ee Poornotes tc tne Principal Statemenca. The DsDIS
suggesta that Sunds recained at individual ccmmissaries
fsr t«he purpcse of making change be digclosed . tne

<=stnotes, anc that expenses be at actual, aeT eac.maced,
zg8ts8 (DoDIG Finding I.2.3).

Jecc=mended acticns t¢ eacs cf the DeDIS requested
agsustmencs are attached. Senerally, tnis cffice concurs
¥1%h a numper =f =ne OCoDIG's recommendaticns, However,
ma-cr area cf disagreement 13 the extent TS whicn ZeCA
snsu.d report, .~ great cetail, the extent °f ita ccntrace
payment and ctner croolems .5 FY 1392--many of wnien nave
seen caorrected. <nile tne OTeDIG requests that tne Cverview
e mccified stz .ns.ode more degalls on sucnh propliems, tnis
s4%.iz8 18 not ~.ned to .asist that CeCA do so.

cle
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® CaCA has reguesced csSncurrence prisr to permitting the DFAS-
T™his offlice

Indianapolis Center <o maxe apprcoved changes.
.3 following the precedent set _ast year to review suggesced
znanges for consistency with DoD pelicy and recommend
apprepriacte action relative to tihe requested corIeccion.

® Conversations with Mr. Gary Lutz (DeCA Resource Management)
indicates that the DoDIGC plans to issue an adverse opanien
zased on problems :2 inventory accounting and duplicace
sayments. Actions taken relative to the corrections i this
=emorandum will not effect that cpinion.

¢ I a memorandum dated April 13, 1993 (at Backup), the DoDIG
advised that it would not »e able to verify corrections made
:5 Business Operacisna Fund financ:ial statemencs atter
April 30, 1993, and correcticns made to other tlan Business
2peraticns Fund financ:al atatemencs after May 13, 1993.

® itzached, at Tab A, .8 a prcrosed memorandum advising he
-oDIG that the Department plans ©3 continue to make
ssrrecticns in Lts audited finarc:al statemencs., Furiner,
tne proposed memorandum advises tnat sucn correctlions will
e submitted to the DODIG for consideraticn. (Forwarding
sroposed corrections to the DoDIG, even though the DeDIG may
not review such corrections, .83 ccnsidered essential to
avoid a situation wnerepy [later on] the ODODIG could state
that it never saw the proposed czanges. Statements by cthe
Z2oDIG that it was not provided an opportunity to see
snanges before they were included :n the final stacemencs

-=uid be misinterpreced and invite additional unwarranted

srizicism of the Deparctment.;

RECCVMENDATICN: Sign the memorandum at Tab A. Also, if ycu
agree, we will relay the attached proposed
comments tz DeCA ang the DFAS-IN, f:o:0
=ransmitzal =5 the CoDIG.

CSCROINATION: Nene.

recared by: Covell/ODCI!MS)AP/3IA882/76149/5-14-93/0A~363-1
<la: 304.02..7.1 Audited Financial Statements

'uy 0y
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J0DIG Pinding I: Resale Stock Fund

J0DIG rinding I.A: The Cvervisw to the financial Statements

DoDIG Pinding I.Ail: CJffice of Management and Budget ‘'CMB)
3ullecin 93-02 scaces that the Overviaw 1S pazec cof :ne flnancial
stacenments and sacu.d cepeort cSn che results of opsratisns and
provide cthe effect o Agency performance i{ndicators. CZeCA's
Overviev cmits .=Isrmaticn suck as bill paying practicses <uring
FY 1392 and tnhe effimcs of bill payin- propiems Lpsn LA
serfasmance iandicatsrs. The Overview cclc: tes prececdures in
ef‘ec: at the end ¢ :ne year for 2ill paying, dut nseas 2
include many ¢ tne =:ll zay:ng proceduzes fsllowea 2ut:ing the
Jear.

Neneereus., This cffizs is unaple :=
requisement i CfS.ize of Management and
udgec (OMB) 3ull 3-02. However, M3 3Bul’let:in 33-32, in
Appenaix B, paragratn A (first paragragn, :third sencence), doss
provide, when referrins o the "Overview”, that "It sncu.id also
include program and acd=inistrative nigalishss and =ay a.sc
nigalisghe c’z:ical areas for financial and management
izprovenent. The Delense Commissary Agency “QOverview'
a "Tirancial Impacs Cf Starct-Up Prablems” sect:on wailchs
sactisfies the OMB regu:rement.

lecormended Act:on:
idenz:fy =ne parsisula

m " ()

.ncludes

SeDIG Iindinq I.A.2: CeCA's Overviev snculd Zeser:ize :ne effect
:f 3237t Up proclems cn e performance :adictors, siscsuncts
Zazneqd (38 percent sca. versus 86 percent acsual) anu :ﬁ:n:es:
Faitd (.33 percent soai versus ..¢ percant actuall. CA dca

e

net Taxe any reterence 9 the amount cf suspectsd d:
cayments (S17 ailllisny =z to the value of invoices (51

written cff 2Ce to duplicate encries.

;:a
E P

nioLLEn)

Recoomended Action: Nonesneur. The "Cverview® addresses scart-
ip prenlems Ln reccoréing (a) expenses, (B) invenzories, (o}
p: perty, plant and equizment, and (d) acesunts recgivabnie
deemea appropriate s .nclilusien by DeCA managemenc.

J0DIC Zinding I.A.3: <.z respect =3 :ne Stangard Alssmacted
Joscner Ixaminat:ics Sysctem (SAVES), :ne Cverview staces

'tng svatems wvere seieczed oecause tests provea zney czulld
ses8 J@CA's consol.Zaceg worxloaa vo.u=ze.' Zowvever,

££.2:3a. at CeCA couli zrovide us wiTh issumencation
esz3. Fursner, cerzain JeCA Fersonnel saintaln tnac
Jc..izes tested vere nc:t Truly representative ci =he vc;;:c ol
TTIRIACTIESNS 2 e Drssessed =V JaCA. The Cverviev snci.i nOC
1ay -me uyl:ems vere se_ected zecause tesss proveq tnhey ssuid
zzscess CeCA's vorx.cac volume. 7The Overview snould Zescriz

[T

30



Appendix C. DeCA Response to Suggested Changes

the excessive downtime ané long overnignt processing tizes chat
affected data entry access and vouchers examiners access to
SAVES, and contributad to zhe vendor payment problems.

Reccmmended Action: Part:ally concur. -f tests cannot be
documented, then it is ir=appropriate to make such a statement.
The decision to include or not to include data, such as
described above, is reserved for the fund manager b5y Qf2fice of
Management and Budget (CMB) memorandum entitled "Flnanc:ial
scacements and Perfcrmance Measures” dated, February S5, -.9392.

DoDIG Pinding I.A.4: CaCi's Overview should disclcse zae
prccedures used to accompiish bill paying during much of
FY 1392. PFor example, tze Overview states "In ke service

cencer's bill paying crganization, the invoice is revieved %o
determine if it meets t2e requirements fcr a proger lnvoice set
fortn -n OMB Circular 4-:25, :f rnot, h

it ls recturned tzs cth
verndor with a laetter expiaining the proolem." However, during
the fall of 1991 improper :.nvoices were retained at the service
cencers f{or correctisn. The invoices were encered inso =he
SAVES and the date DeCA ccrracted the invoice was enterec as the
date CeCA received the :invoice from the vendor.

Improper invoices were not returned to vendors within =ne
requirements of the Prompt Payment Act and vendors had no
opportunity to correct their i{nvoices te obtain prompt payment.
A later statement in the Querview also discloses current
prac:ize but does not reflect procedures in effect dur:ing th
fall and winter of 1991-1592. “Improper invoices are recurned
0 the vendor within zhe z:.meframe set forth in CMB Clreoular

A-125 and de not izcur i{aterest.”

Reccmnended Action: Noncoacur. The Office of Management and
Budgerz, in a memorandum cdaced, February 5, 1392, advises that,
"The Overview of the Reporzing Entity wiil be the first and for
many readers (e.g9., non-accsuntants and righ-level cecision
Mmakers) perhaps the cnly par: of the Annual Financ:al Statsment

that will be read. It mus: provide readers with a clear and

concise understanding of tne reporting eneity's activitias,
acccmpl.shments, financial results and ccndition, preblems, and
needs. It ahould tell the reader whether and how vell zh
missicn of the reporting entity is being accomplished and whac, X,
i{& anyzning, needs tc te dzne to improve e:ther program

ferizrmance or financial cerformance.” Corrective agzicn cn

many =£ Ine previous prcolems already have been taxen: and :cae

Smissizn of the suggested statements dcoea =st appear =2 wv.clate

SMB'3 direct:ion.

JoDIG Pinding I.A.S: ZeCA snould descrite earlier FTocecures
during tne fall £ 1991 and winter of 1332 wita regarg :=
Tecengililations kbetween :nvo:ices and rece:zts, ZlfZfarens
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srececures vere used curing che pericd of bill paving problems
in Y 1992 than were disclcsed in the Overview.

Recommended Action: Noncencur £9r zhe reasons sctated in

item Z.A.4.

The Cverview doas not =enticn that because
-

DoDIG Pinding I.A.6:
of the bill paying problems, cutdated contracts were recained

-
-

SAVES during FY 1992 teyond the timeframes nozmally permitted.

Recommended Action: Nonccneur £or the reasons stated in liem

l.ALG.

DoDIG 2inding I.A.7: DeCA's cverview says "it is ta2e apinion of
this Agency that .nventor:ies are significant.y cverstated in he
financ:al records." We suggest that DeCA use tie Snrase “we
believe” rtather tnan "it i3 our opinign.” The audisor's opinien
should be tnhe only opinion itacluded in the fizanc:al statements
in crder %o avoid cconfusing zhe reader. 1% C“eCA can determ:in
or estimate the overstatement of lnventory, it snould provide
the irforemation in the Overviev and based on the degree of
supporting evidence considering adjusting the f£izancial

stacenentcs.

Recommended Action: Concu:r.

DeDIG Firnding I.3: The Financial Statements

DoDIG rirnding I.3.1: The Statement of Operations. Resale
Siocxs andé Consoiidating Statements. DeCA's Csst of Goods Sold
snould be stated ln accordance with OMB 93-02. DeCA's Cost of
Goods Sold vas allocated between public and imtragovernmenzal cn
the pasis of obligations to the Federal Government. However,
OMB §$3-22 requires that the Cost of Goods Sold -e cased on =4
cost ¢f sales tc custcmers, not the activities tnhe goods were
purcnased ftom. TRis errcr causes significant misstatement in

che fizanc:al statements.

For exanrple,

2ublic Intrzagovernmentc
(000)s (00C)s
Revenue Iz2= zhe Sale of
Goocs $6,00%,021 $152,304
Zzst =% Gcosds Solzd 5,053,127 976,638
Preflic (lLoss) 951,304 824,634)
DeCA c.zar.y did not proflit sy S95L million ¢ sales =3 the
sunlic nzr lcse $824 millicn cn intragovernmen:t sa.es. These
aMneunts are material tc ZeCA's flnanc:.al statexents.
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oy

Recommended Action: Concur. Recommend that DeCA attempt 9
classify "Ccst of Gocds Sold" aleng he lines suggested by the

auditor.

DoDIG FPinding I.B.2: 7The Statement cf Operations for the Resale
Stcex Fund snows §4,228,198 in Other Revenues and financing
$17.3 millien in inventory locsses againsc §21.5 milllien in Other
Revenues pr:izarily derived from coupons. The $17.3 millien

should be snown on line 12, Bad Debts and Write Offs. The
amount of Otnker Revenues should be $21.5 million. The nacure of
The

the Other Revenues should be disclosed in the Notes,
misscated accounts in the Resale Stocoxs statements carry over

inte the Consocliidated Statements as errors.

Recommended Actien: Concur.

Statement of Financial Position. The
Accounts Receivaole-federal for Resale
Stoeks is cverscated by $198,079,000 far uncznflirmed deposits,
This amoun: ~as been sent for ceposit in financial lnatitutiocns,
Sut the depos:t tickets have not been forwarded through the
commissaries to Defense Finance and Accounting Service (DFAS)-
Columbus Cencer for credit to DeCA's account. 7The unconfirmed
deposits represent amounts that really are Treasury Cash, but
are not yet recognized by Treasury. Some of :the deposits were
in transit cr not yet accounted for by the financial
institutions cn Septemper 30, .992. These unconfirmed deposits
should be shcwn as Other, Non-Federal Financ:ial Resources and
explained in :ze Notes. OMB Bulletin 93-02 requires the
separate reporting of Federal Intragovernmencal items to
facilitate =ne preparation of government-wide consolidated
financial stactementa. Since the $198 million does nor represent
an amount due frcm a Federal Agency on Septemper 30, 1352, the
amount shouls not be shown as a Federal Intragovernmencal item.
The only reascn to not reflect the uncoenfirmed depoaits as casn
Or cther monetary assets is that DeCA has been :nstructed to
SnOW no casn assets cn its statement cf financ:ial position.
This issue wi.. be discussed between DoD IG, :tke DBOF, and

Qs3(C;.

Recommended Action: Concur. However, neither =he Defense
Commissary Agency, n0r any cother 3usiness Operations Fund
activity, nas seen instructed tc exclucde casn o7 aay other
sonezary asset =i the Stactement of Financial Pesition. They
rave, however, csen lnstructed s show a "Fund %alance With
Treasury" tnat .S equai to the differencae betveen digbursements
and collect:cns f£or the reported fiscal year. The reason for
3ucn directicn L3 that the 3Susiness Operat:cns Fund casn balance
:3 ne.d and csntrolled at the Fund level.

DoDIC Finding I.B.3:
Overview states that
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Footnotes c¢3 the Pinancial Statements

J6DIG PFinding I.C.1: Resale Stoecks. Footnote disclosure should
Se made of the change funds held at the commissaries. DaCA

staff said that change funds xept at the commissaries are
feported By local digbursing offizers. and are not reportad by
eCA. However, DeCA physically conercls these monies. The
amount held and the reason for =ot including such monies in the
Statement cf firancial Positizsn should be disclosed in the Notes
to the Financ:ial Statements. We estimate that JeCA could held
$6 milllzsa iz crange funds ($15,000 ser commissary times 384

stores).

DePIG Pinding I.C:

Recommended Action: Concur.

20DIG Flndirg II: COperaticns Pund

SODIG Finding IT.A: Overview., Ne czmments are made ccrcernin
Speracicns <isclcosures in the Cverview at tnis sime.

Recommended Action: <Ihe fisding reguirtes no csrrective action.

0oDIG Pindizag II.3: Financial Statements

JSOoDIG Pinding II.3.1: 3Statemene of Operaticns. DeCA's Notes tc
the Financ:ai statements disclcse that $64.56 million in year~
end accruals for specific expense tYpes vere nc: processed by
tne Agency and that expenses for comissary Cperations are

snderstaced by this amount. seCA staf? explained that X

expenses vere not accrued because of limitatisns of DeCA's
dccounting sysctem. <The $64.36 =illlscn i3 mater:al to DeCA's
The S64.56 =1llizn i3 material to tae

acegunting syscem. °~h
financial stacements taken as a vnole, and rnoneaccrual cf $64.56

=illicn causes misscatement of =g fimancial scatements
tncluding tne Statements of Cperaticns, Finarc:al Fositica. and

3udget and Actual Ixpenses.

t#-:

Recommanded Action: Concur.

JaDIG Pindizg II.B.2: Total expenses of $.,527,281,818 on the
Statement cf Operaticns for Cperaticns is iacsrrectly enclosed
SY Farentngses. Thae amount 13 carcied forwars csrrectly to T
Consolidates Statement and added csrrectly cn tne Statement o2
Srerazions. TRhis errcr is sti.l a sigaificant error for «n
financial 3tazemencs,

Csneur. TRe rarentneses sazuld be deleceg.

Recommended Actiocn:

CeDIG Pindinz II.3.3: Statemenz =£ Financial Fosition. Zgquip-
=mnt Valuazizz. “ha valuaz:icn of acuizment .o :ne flnanc:ial
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acatements does nc: sgree with the trial balance. The $48,025%

Sisstatement effects the Statement £ Sinancial rosition, State-

~ent of Operatizzs, Statement
Budget and Actual Zxpanses.
Consolidating S:actements.

cf Casn Flows, and Statement of
The error carries faorward into the

Recommended Acticn: Conour.

DoDIG Pinding IT.B.4: Operations. Jypegraphical and Other
Errors, TRere vece small typograpnical errors of flgures in the
Stacement of Firanc:al Positicn, Statement of Operations, and
Statement of Casn Flcws. The errors were not included (n
totals, Pigures znat agrees with the trial balance are included
i1 the tosals anc carried fcrwarded s the Consolidating

Statements.

Recommended Actic:: Trectlve acticn should be taken as roted.

J00IG Pinding II.C. Footnotes ts the Pinancial Statements.
Fcotnote 7 %o Csmmissary Czeratisas and Fostrote 3 to the
3usiness Operaticns Fund reflect tae allocation of $878 million
.2 operating expenses in the CCNUS based on the percentage of

e Midwest Regicn. OMB

total expenses oy line item for ==
‘Financial statemencs snall be the

Bullaetin 93-02 states thas

cilzmination of a systemat:iz accounting process.” SMB 93-02

also requires tha:t "... tz the extent possible, expenses should
Agencies

Se classified and -eported by 72307 type of prograx:.
that are able to &2 so should alse disclese operacing expenses
Sy cbject classif:zaticn :2 the notes to the princ:pal
stazements.” DeCA did davelop aczual expense data for the
M“idwest Region anc had actual data for Euzope. Thcse expenses
snould be disclosec :n th:e Notes including an explanation of
wnat is representec. However, eéxtrapolating form one region to
the other five CONUS ragions with percentage estimates {s not an
apprepriate basis fcr reporzing expenses by objecc

staff said actual expense i{nformaticn was

c.assification. cCeCA
not developed for :the rest cf CINUS because of the lacx of stafs

and time {nvolved.
Cencur Zowever, the footnote should more

Reccmmend eticn: ur.
appropriately state thact, 'The Defense Commissary Agency is

=naocle to capture expense oy OBject c.ass accurateiy at this
ti2e. Systems Iz capture ass TeDOrI expenses by cdiect class

ére ia the process of teing develocped, "
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Appendix D. Organizations Visited or Contacted

Office of the Secretary of Defense

Assistant Secretary of Defense (Production and Logistics)

Defense Agencies

Defense Commissary Agency Headquarters, Fort Lee, Petersburg, VA
Defense Commissary Agency, East Service Center, Fort Lee, Petersburg VA
Defense Commissary Agency, West Service Center, Kelly Air Force Base, San Antonio, TX
Alameda Naval Air Station, Commissary Resale Store, Alameda, CA
Charles Melvin Price Support Center, Commissary Resale Store, Granite City, IL
Fort Carson, Commissary Resale Store, Fort Carson, CO
Fort Benjamin Harrison, Commissary Resale Store, Fort Benjamin Harrison, IN
Fort Huachuca, Commissary Resale Store, Fort Huachuca, AZ
Fort Monroe, Commissary Resale Store, Fort Monroe, VA
Fort Ord, Commissary Resale Store, Fort Ord, CA
Holloman Air Force Base, Commissary Resale Store, Alamogordo, NM
Jacksonville Naval Air Station, Commissary Resale Store, Jacksonville, FL
Kingsville Naval Air Station, Commissary Resale Store, Kingsville, TX
Langley Air Force Base, Commissary Resale Store, Hampton, VA
March Air Force Base, Commissary Resale Store, Riverside, CA
McChord Air Force Base, Commissary Resale Store, Tacoma, WA
National City Central Distribution Center, San Diego, CA
Norton Air Force Base, Commissary Resale Store, San Bernardino, CA
Oceana Naval Air Station, Commissary Resale Store, Virginia Beach, VA
Patrick Air Force Base, Commissary Resale Store, Cocoa Beach, FL
U.S. Air Force Academy, Commissary Resale Store, Colorado Springs, CO
Wurtsmith Air Force Base, Commissary Resale Store, Oscoda, MI
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Office of the Secretary of Defense

Assistant Secretary of Defense (Production and Logistics)
Assistant Secretary of Defense (Force Management and Personnel)
Assistant to the Secretary of Defense for Public Affairs
Comptroller of the Department of Defense

Department of the Army

Secretary of the Army
Inspector General

Department of the Navy

Department of the Navy, Naval Audit Service

Department of the Air Force

Air Force Audit Agency

Defense Agencies

Director, Defense Commissary Agency

Director, Defense Contract Audit Agency

Director, Defense Finance and Accounting Service
Defense Intelligence Agency

Director, Defense Logistics Agency

Director, Defense Logistics Studies Information Exchange
National Security Agency

Non-DoD Federal Organizations

U.S. General Accounting Office
Information Management and Technical Division
National Security and International Affairs Division, Technical Information Center
National Security and International Affairs Division, Defense and National Aeronautics and
Space Administration Management Issues
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Non-DoD Federal Organizations (cont'd)

National Security and International Affairs Division, Military Operations and Capabilities
Issues
Office of Management and Budget
National Security Division Special Project Branch
Office of Federal Procurement Policy

Chairman and Ranking Minority Member of Each of the Following Congressional Committees
and Subcommittees:

Senate Committee on Appropriations

Senate Committee on Defense, Committee on Appropriations

Senate Committee on Armed Services

Senate Committee on Government Affairs

House Committee on Appropriations

House Committee on Defense, Committee on Appropriations

House Committee on Armed Services

House Committee on Government Operations

House Subcommittee on Legislation and National Security, Committee on Government
Operations
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Overview 1-7-3

DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY
DEFENSE BUSINESS OPERATIONS FUND
OVERVIEW

DESCRIPTION OF THE REPORTING ENTITY

The Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA) is an element of the Department of Defense
under the supervision of the Under Secretary of Defense (Acquisition) through the Assis-
tant Secretary of Defense (Production and Logistics). DeCA was formed after the House
Armed Services Committee-appointed Jones Commission found that a single agency could
operate the commissary system more efficiently and at a lower cost. After fifteen months
of intense planning and coordination, DeCA was officially activated on October 1, 1991.
DeCA now manages and operates a worldwide network of systems managing 22,000
people, encompassing nearly 400 commissaries worldwide, and totaling more than $6
billion in annual sales.

Mission

DeCA’s mission is to operate the network of retail grocery sales stores, making quality
goods available at the lowest possible cost to members of the U S. military Services.
Commissary patrons include members of the military Services, retirees, members of the
Reserve and National Guard and authorized family members. This is a quality of life
benefit that improves the armed Services’ efficiency. DeCA also provides a training
environment for wantime support operations, and provides troop issue subsistence support
to military dining facilities in accordance with the needs of the Services.

The Agency is headquartered at Fort Lee, Virginia. The headquarters command ele-
ment and staff manages the total resources of all DoD commissaries worldwide, including
personnel, facilities, supplies, equipment and funds The headquarters has oversight of a
worldwide system of seven regions, districts within several of those regions, and two
service centers

DeCA Regions

Region Location

Central Little Creek Naval Amphibious Base, VA
Northeast Fort Meade, MD

Southem Maxweil Air Force Base, AL

Midwest Kelly Air Force Base, TX

Southwest E! Toro Marine Corps Air Base, CA
Northwest-Pacific Fort Lewis, WA

European Ramstein Air Force Base, Germany
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Each region headquarters encompasses several divisions, including Operations, Re-
source Management, Information Resources Management, Facilities. Personnel and Train-
ing, Contracting and Auditing Several of the regions are divided into districts for
localized management support

Region headquarters provide technical advice, assistance, training and direction pertain-
ing to resale and troop issue functions to all locations under their jurisdiction. The region
office staff also acts as liaison for DeCA Headquarters with all commissaries and installa-
tion commanders within the region. Region commanders and directors report personally to
DeCA’s Deputy Director. They are responsible for ensuring the accomplishment of all
phases of the DeCA mission, including policy implementation, customer service, safety
and security, computer systems, goals and operating standards, manpower requirements,
training programs and stockage requirements. They are also the accountable officers for
all region assets and resources.

Service Centers

DeCA’s two service centers are located at Fort Lee, Virginia (East Service Center),
and Kelly Air Force Base, Texas (West Service Center) The East Service Center has
responsibility for all commissaries, districts and regions east of the Mississippi, including
Europe; the West Service Center has the identical duties for locations west of the Missis-
sippi, including the Pacific.

The centers are responsible for analysis and reconciliation of accounting transaction
data between the inventory management system and the official accounting system. They
provide accounts management, including accounts payable reconciliation of receipts and
vendor invoices voucher preparation; and disbursement officer certification for payment of
funds. The service centers also perform contracting for resale merchandise, services and
supplies. The West Service Center is the focal point for the DeCA merchandise coupon
program

Agency Funding

DeCA is funded from three congressionaily-approved sources:

(1) Commissary Resale Stock (97X4930.5K00) accounts for the purchase of resale
stock items - primanily groceries and war reserve materials. The fund is a sub-apportion-
ment of the Defense Business Operations Fund (DBOF) Revenues are recognized at the
point of sale
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{(2) Commissary Operations (97X4930.5J00) accounts for direct and indirect costs of
store operations. Also sub-apportioned from the DBOF, authorized revenues for this
account are established as a percentage of sales The lions share of this account is ex-
pended for civilian and military pay. Expenses are recognized upon consumption. This
account contains a capital budget limitation subject to provisions of 31 USC 1517.

(3) Commissary Surcharge Collections (97X8164) revenue is generated by a surcharge
added to grocery sales at checkout. The money generated by this surcharge is used to
build, renovate and upgrade commissaries; and defrays store-level operational expenses
like equipment, utilities, bags, plastic wrap, etc. The largest share is used for building
new commissaries and modifying existing structures. These monies are congressionally
apportioned to DeCA. Budgetary resources for Commissary Surcharge Collections in FY
92 also included unfunded contract authority. The fund operates subject to the provisions
of Section 1517 of 31 USC, relevant portions of Title 10 USC and DoD 1330.17-R.

Defense Commissary Advisory Board

The Defense Commissary Advisory Board is responsible to the Assistant Secretary of
Defense (Production and Logistics). It functions as a forum for discussion of commissary
issues. The Board consists of the DeCA Director, who serves as chairman; a representa-
tive of the chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff; one military officer and one enlisted
representative from each of the military Services, appointed by the secretaries of the mili-
tary departments; and other invited representatives.

The board meets annually, or more often as needed, to exchange information between
the DeCA director and the military departments It considers key aspects of DeCA opera-
tions, services and resources and makes recommendations on policies and programs.

The board also provides advice on funding and recommends priorities for the commis-
sary construction program. Its main objective is to enhance patron service and ensure that
a financially solvent and responsive system is maintained to benefit commissary patrons.

BACKGROUND OF THE CONSOLIDATION

The Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA) was activated on October 1, 1991 DeCA's
mission is to operate a worldwide system of retail grocery sales stores, making quality
goods available at the lowest possible cost to service personnel, retirees and their families.
DeCA also is responsible for assisting in wartime troop suppont and maintaining stocks of
subsistence materials.

The consolidation of the military Services' commissary systems under the DeCA was
more complex than previous consolidations within the Department The substantial differ-
ences and incompatibilities of the distribution, pricing, contracung, bill paying, and ac-
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counting systems of the four military Services’ commissary operations mandated standard-
jzation in order to achieve the benefits of consolidation. The consolidation required the
establishment of accounting systems, organization responsibilities and document flows to
provide stewardship and accountability for funds provided to the DeCA

A major objective of the consolidation was to achieve improved item availability for the
commissary patron while saving taxpayer dollars through better inventory management by
using food industry practices. DeCA’s distribution system utilizes a combination of central
distribution centers (CDCs) and “just-in-time” inventory from distributors or vendors for
delivery to the commissary store shelf For remote commissaries, sufficient inventory
levels are maintained in backrooms to meet sales demands considering the product avail-
ability from vendors

DeCA used the existing Services’ CDCs, and new CDCs to support all commissaries
within a geographic area regardless of former Service affiliation. This required integrated
procedures and compatible pricing, contracting, bill paying and accounting systems

The “just-in-time” inventory methodology was developed and implemented with indus-
try participation, using a Total Quality Management approach, to ensure a workable system
which was beneficial to all parties. The current standardized process requires deliveries to
be rolled-up from the 1st - 15th and from the 16th to month-end to reduce invoicing/billing
costs for industry and the government’s processing costs. In addition, the vendor obtains
preferable payment terms in net 23 days vs the normal net 30 days. The roll-up method of
invoicing used by DeCA does not apply to products which require payment either in 7 or
10 days under the Prompt Payment Act uniess the manufacturer requests these type items
be rolled in their contracts.

DeCA implemented a region based central buying and pricing concept for resale items.
Under this concept the regions have professional buyers who negotiate the best prices with
the vendors by combining quantities of items for ail commissaries or CDCs in the region
The vendors provide the region buyers their price quotes with the effective dates. The
region, in turn, sends the prices to the commissaries and CDCs for use in ordering, receiv-
ing and selling the items. This concept uses DeCA’s buying power to get the best prices
and quality products; and, it ensures uniformity of item pricing between commissaries in
the same pricing zone

The military Services’ commissary organizations used different systems for buying and
pricing resale items that directly impacted the efficiency of DeCA’s operations initially.
The military Services’ systems were incompatibie and had to be meided into a single
system to effect the consolidation of commissaries. The military Services’ buying and
pricing systems ranged from highly centralized at the region or complex level to fully
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decentralized at the commissary. When DeCA took over October 1, 1991, interfaces
needed to be developed to continue using Navy and Air Force automated commissary
systems for central pricing until DeCA’s interim business system (DIBS) could be fuily
deployed The Marine Corps’ commissaries and CDCs were the first to convert to DIBS
on October 1, 1991, because of the cost to maintain their proprietary system. Under
DeCA. the former Army commissaries now receive their pricing from the respective
region; however, they continue to use the same manual methods to enter prices into their
front end cash register systems and to transmit receiving data using a PC to the DeCA
Standard Automated Voucher Examination System (SAVES). As DIBS is deployed, it will
provide regions the capability to electronically transmit price quotes to the commissaries
and CDCs This should substantially reduce or eliminate pricing discrepancies, a problem
that has continually challenged commissaries.

DeCA’s concept was to establish a single contracting office at the West Service Center
to issue all resale contracts and a contracting office at the East Service Center to issue all
other contracts, i.e., for equipment, supplies and services needed by DeCA organizations
This approach provided vendors supplying DeCA with a standard method to get a contract
and, depending on the nature of the procurement, one location for contracts. It also pro-
vided the capability to combine requirements for supplies and equipment to obtain lower
prices from quantity purchases. It was concluded that “capitalization in place” was not
feasible as it would have required modifying over 60,000 resale contracts used by the
military Services and maintaining them in many contracting offices. In addition, the
differences in DeCA’s distribution methods and the realignment of commissaries, troop
issue activities and CDCs under the DeCA region mandated that new resale contracts be
established.

For the resale contracts, DeCA adopted a regionalized approach to reduce the number
of contracts needed and the associated maintenance costs to both the Government and
industry Under this concept, a vendor was issued a single contract for each type of distri-
bution method and department, i.e., grocery, meat or produce, for all commissaries, troop
issue activities and CDCs serviced by the vendor within the region. This approach dra-
matically reduced the number of commissary resale contracts by some 57 percent, from
the approximate 60,000 contracts used by the military Services’ commissary systems to
approximately 25,000 contracts in DeCA’s system. A reduction of this magnitude trans-
lates into savings for the Government and industry.

Prior to DeCA there were over 100 bill paying activities and 22 commissary regions/
compiexes. The consolidation resuited in two bill paying offices and seven regions. DeCA
could not use all of the different bill paying and accounting systems of the military Ser-
vices' commissary systems after the consolidation and maintain essential funds control to
execute a $6.5 billion annual resale program. DeCA's concept was to centralize and
standardize bill paying and accounting systems to provide funds control, reduce operating
costs, and simplify the number of required interfaces from the commissary business sys-
tems
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The Jones Commission-DoD Study of Military Commissary System recognized the
need to reduce the 100 bill paying offices supporting the military Services’ commissary
systems. The study recommended consolidating the bill paying function at the commissary
regions. DeCA, to stay within the dictated manpower constraints and to achieve further
efficiencies, consolidated bill paying at two service centers [ocated East and West to ser-
vice the respective regions in those areas of the continental United States. Furthermore,
DeCA selected the Defense Finance and Accounting Service (DFAS), Columbus Center to
provide centralized accounting and disbursing support for its regions and commissaries at a
lower overail cost. This centralization of bill paying and accounting was made possible
through use of the Defense Logistics Agency communication network which enables the
DeCA Headquarters, service centers, regions, commissaries, troop issue activities and
CDC:s 1o be linked with the bill paying and accounting systems from ail locations in the
continental United States, Hawaii and Alaska. In addition, the DeCA civilian payroll for
over 17,000 personnel was centralized at the DFAS Columbus Center from some 70
payroll offices at a lower cost In the European Commissary Region, a similar consolida-
tion of over 2,000 civilian personnei payroll records was accomplished at the 266th Army
Theatre Area Finance Command in Heidelberg, Germany to reduce processing costs.

In selecting the bill paying and accounting systems, DeCA evaluated those used by the
former military Services commissaries and the Defense Logistics Agency’s systems.
Additionally, DeCA coordinated with the Department’s Corporate Information Manage-
ment Groups working on bilt paying and accounting systems; and the Defense Finance and
Accounting Service (i ¢ . implementation team and the headquaners after January 20,

1992)

The Army’s Standard Accounting and Finance System (STANFINS) and the Standard
Automated Voucher Examination System (SAVES) were selected for DeCA'’s resale stock
accounting and bill paying, respectively The systems were selected because tests proved
they could process DeCA’s consolidated workload volume; the automated interfaces be-
tween the accounting and bill paying modules aiready existed and were proved successful
over the prior five vears Also, the former Army commissaries, representing 31 percent of
the stores, were experienced on the system and required minimal retraining; and the ac-
counting system was compatible with the standard civilian payroll system at the DFAS
Columbus Center which eliminated the need for multiple computers. In addition, the
DFAS certified the capabilities and controls of the SAVES for bill paying in July 1991 in a
Federal Managers Financial Integrity Act (FMFIA) review of the system.

The biil paying system, SAVES, that DeCA is using is contract based. The system
validates receipt and invoice information at the time of data input and will not accept the
input if the contract 1s not in SAVES; or if the commissary, troop issue activity, or CDC
are not authorized to use the contract; or the order (i e, call) number was previously used
by the commissary troop issue activity/CDC.
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Each day the commissaries, troop issue activities and CDCs key in their receiving data
10 their business system where it is validated for contract and call number The receipt file
is transmitted each evening to the SAVES computer at the DeCA East Service Center
through our communications network. The vendor sends invoices to either the East or
West Service Center depending on the billing address in the contract. The mail room
supporting each service center opens the mail daily, date stamps each invoice, and delivers
the invoices to the bill paying organization in the service center.

In the service center’s bill paying organization, the invoice is reviewed to determine if
it meets the requirements for a proper invoice set forth in OMB Circular A-125. If not, it
is returned to the vendor with a letter explaining the problem. The invoice requirements
are vendor’'s name; contract number; item description, unit price, quantity; extended and
totalled dollar amounts; payment terms; name of delivery location; vendor’s “remit to”
address; and vendor point of contact and telephone number. Once the invoice is reviewed
to determine if it contains the required elements, it is keyed into SAVES and validated at
the point of entry for valid contract number; commissary/troop issue activity/CDC autho-
rized to use contract; and duplicate call numter. If the invoice does not pass the edit
criteria, the invoice is returned to the vendor with a letter explaining the problem.

Once the invoice is entered into SAVES, the system searches during the end-of-day
processing cycle for a matching receipt based on the contract and call (i.e. order) number.
If the invoice and receipt are matched, the system determines if the doliar amounts agree.
The SAVES will automaticaily reconcile the invoice and receipt amouats down to the
lower amount when the difference does not exceed $200. If the invoice or receipt amounts
differ by more than $200, a manual reconciliation will be performed by the service center
bill paying organization. Payment vouchers furnished the vendor with the check show
reason codes to explain any differences between the amount invoiced and paid.

The SAVES automatically considers discount terms offered by the vendor when the
invoice and receipt are matched; and, SAVES determines if discounts are cost effective for
the Government The discount period is calculated automatically by SAVES from the date
of invoice If the terms are favorable, the system schedules the payment to take the dis-
count. If the terms are not favorable, the system will schedule the payment for the net
terms of the contract

1f the payment was made outside the net contract terms, interest is automatically calcu-
lated by SAVES and added to the payment. The vendor’s copy of the voucher shows the
interest paid. SAVES automatically computes the interest due on late payments based on
the later of the date the invoice was received in the DeCA mail room or the date of deliv-
ery of the items at the commissary/troop issue activity/CDC. Improper invoices are re-
turned to the vendor the timeframe set forth in OMB Circular A-125 and do not incur

interest
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On the payment due date, the SAVES produces a payment file and a voucher file which
are electronically sent to the DFAS Columbus Center for producing the check and voucher
The DFAS Columbus Center matches the voucher with the check and mails the payment to
the vendor.

FINANCIAL IMPACT OF START-UP PROBLEMS

The Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA) was activated on October 1, 1991 as a result
of the Jones Commission DoD Commissary Study to consolidate the Air Force, Army,
Navy, and Marine Corps commissary systems. Non-compatible automated systems and
diverse operating procedures were major obstacles DeCA had to confront during its first
year of operation. These start-up problems were also prevalent in the following financial
areas:

Accounting systems employed for DeCA resale activity were placed into operation
shortly before DeCA’s activation Although testing was performed, not all problems were
identified prior to start-up Minor problems became evident in the Continental United
States (CONUS) application during the early months of operation, and most were resolved
as they were identified. However, after capitalization of the prior Services’ inventories, it
became evident that resale accounts payable and inventory balances in CONUS were
overstated, and further research disclosed that the problem existed at start-up. At the
Office of the Secretary of Defense’s direction, a team was established under the supervi-
sion of the DoD Comptrolier to identify all problems in the resale accounting system, and
to establish and execute a pian to resolve the problems. The team’s mandate is to resolve
the specific issues related to overstatement of inventories and accounts payable, and to
resolve other outstanding issues related to the CONUS resale accounting system by mid-
1993

EXPENSES

Accounting systems currently providing support to DeCA do not provide detail expense
data by general ledger account code (GLAC) DeCA employed the Defense Business
Management System (DBMS), (an existing accounting system) to perform the accounting
function for its commissary operations and surcharge collections accounts. In DBMS,
operating expenses for FY 92 were not accrued in the period during which performance
occurred. Instead, expenses were largely recorded at the time of disbursement. As a
result, expenses are understated in the financial statements. Expense information at the
detail object class level is provided by the accounting system servicing the European the-
ater operations. However, the accounting system that services CONUS operations pro-
vides only summary expenses (not by GLAC or object class) At present, a download
extract is provided; however totals do not agree with summary expense totals from the
DFAS trial balance report  As a result, expense amounts reflected in these reporns for
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Commissary Qperations are accurate at bottom line, but aside from payroll costs, the object
class distribution is based on a representative DeCA region. Real Property Maintenance
expenses totaling approximately $21.9 million are included in the “Contractual Services”
object classification

Fund Balances with Treasury, Cash and Foreign Currency

(1) Unexpended Appropriations: The amount reported for Commissary Operations
($170 0 million) is understated in FY 92 by approximately $3 8 million. The reason for
the understatement is a transfer of funds from surcharge collections that was not processed
as an increase to income during the fiscal year. The omission was discovered after submis-
sion of the TFS 2108

(2) Cash: The cash baiance reflected in item B represents net outlays reported to this
Agency by servicing finance and accounting activities, and recorded in the Agency’s
accounting reports The Defense Business Operations Fund (DBOF) outlay transactions
reported directly to the Treasury by outside activities are not reflected in the cash balance.

Inventories

The following are the types of DeCA inventory and method used to determine the value
of each type of inventory:

(1) Inventories Held for Sale: Grocery items procured from Federal and non-Federal
sources are restricted for sale at cost to authorized commissary patrons, and to authorized
appropriated and nonappropriated fund organizations. Resale inventories are valued using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method

(2) Troop Issue: Bulk purchase food items are procured in support of troop mission
requirements for Air Force installations and Army troop supported activities on 11 Army
installations. These items are procured through Defense Personnel Support Center
(DPSC), and sold at cost primarily to troop dining facilities. Commissaries that have a
troop support mission must always be ready to support any contingency or rapid depioy-
ment. Troop Issue inventories are valued using the FIFO method.

(3) War Readiness Materiel (WRM): New WRM stocks are procured by DeCA and
stored in Central Distribution Centers (CDCs), warehouses, or facilities under commercial
lease by DPSC until needed. The Operations and Maintenance, Air Force appropriation,
replaces spoiled and obsolete stocks. The WRM stocks residing in DeCA inventories are
valued using the FIFO method
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Inventory - Start-Up Problems: DeCA has experienced many transitionary problems
in its conversion year with recording and valuation of inventories. As a result of these
problems, no adjustments were made to the accounting records based on physical invento-
ries, and it is the opinion of this Agency that inventories are significantly overstated in the
financial records

(1) A reconciliation of the control versus subsidiary accounts conducted at fiscal year-
end disclosed a $205 million overstatement of inventory balances in the accounting control
files Based on this discovery, the resale inventory and accounts payable balances were
adjusted downward by $205 million to bring the accounting records into agreement with
the subsidiary.

(2) Portions of the business/accounting system interface did not function correctly
during FY 92. Specifically, store transactions that generate increases and decreases to
inventory on-hand and inventory in-transit balances did not post correctly. Actions are
underway to correct this problem.

(3) Beginning inventories capitalized when DoD consolidated commissary operations
under DeCA are questionable The military Services cannot substantiate the ending inven-
tory balances, which were furnished to DeCA as beginning balances. Since initial capitali-
zation of those balances, no reconciliation has been performed in the Agency’s accounting

system.

(4) Duplication may have occurred in the transfers of resale stock inventories from the
military Services. In addition to capitalization of the certified ending inventory amounts, it
is believed that the Air Force also sent a significant amount of in-transit inventory billings
to DeCA. This means that these amounts were absorbed during the initial capitalization
and again upon receipt of the merchandise at DeCA commissaries classified within ASAC
as “receipts not due-in”.

(5) Procedures used to transfer inventory between warehouses, commissaries, regions,
DPSC and other locations are under review. Controls are being evaluated to discern
whether the inventory accounts are being properly affected by the transfers. A plan has
been deveioped in conjunction with the OSD Comptroller to inventory all DeCA commis-
saries and CDCs in March and April 1993 to establish valid book inventories.

Property, Plant and Equipment

B Other Information: The Property and Plant Accounting System (PPAS) is the prop-
erty accountability system employed by DeCA. The Agency encountered difficulty obtain-
ing accountability data from the military Services to accurately load property values into
the PPAS:
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(1) The consolidation process invoived gathering data from property records of
all four military Services Property records were not uniform. [t is doubtful that all
capital assets are properiy classified and/or reflected in the PPAS, and in this statement.

2 In most cases, exact acquisition dates were not provided by the former
Services For the DBOF, all capital assets acquired were entered into the PPAS with an
acquisition date of October 1, 1991, or DeCA'’s inaugural date. As a result, we are aware
that net book values are overstated by the time value of the difference (net acquisition
value less depreciation) between October 1, 1991 and the actual acquisition date

3) These problems are being resolved wherever actual acquisition data is
available Each DeCA region has been tasked to identify and submit corrections to the
PPAS 1o reflect, as nearly as possible, the correct acquisition dates and values for property
contained in their inventories

Resale Stock Receivables

Accounts Receivable, Federal is overstated by $198,079,000, or the value of uncon-
firmed deposits at September 30, 1992 The unconfirmed deposits should have been
reported as Treasury cash. The resale accounting system is currently programmed to
record collections for cash sales as public receivables until deposits are confirmed at the
DFAS-Columbus accounting center--normally three to five days after the funds are depos-
ited A system change is being initiated to discontinue this practice. When the change is
completed, proceeds from cash sales will post to unconfirmed deposits, not receivables.

This performance measure shows customer responses to twelve survey questions.
Results are expressed as a mean average on a scale of 1 to 5 (outstanding to unsatisfac-

tory)
COST PER DOLLAR SALES

This performance measure shows appropriated funds expended for each dollar of
commissary sales; expressed as a ratio of appropriated funds to sales. In the financial
reports actual expenses are understated by $64 56 million in identified unrecorded accruals

OBLIGATIONS TO SALES COMPARISON

This performance measure shows the value of resale stock fund doliars expended to
replace inventory sold to commissary patrons, minus inventory drawdowns due to patron
base reductions and inventory management efficiencies. It is expressed as a ratio of inven-
tory orders to sales The objective ratio for commissary tesale stocks in FY 92 was 995
(Sales are exclusive of coupon handling fees of $20 7 million.)

51



DeCA DBOF Financial Statements for FY 1992

1-7-14 Overview

FINANCIAL ATTRIBUTES
OPERATING EFFICIENCY ATTRIBUTES

Cost performance against FY 92 cost objectives are outlined below This attribute
shows the degree to which fund cost performance was met when compared against the cost
objectives. Anticipated costs for the Commissary Operations account are based on a fixed
percentage of projected store sales; for FY 92, the cost objective was 17.7% of store sales
The objective cost per dollar of sales for the resale account was set at 99.5%. If adjusted
for unrecorded accruals, the actual would be 18.1%.

ASSET MANAGEMENT
EFFICIENCY RATIO

This attribute is an overall measure of the entity’s asset position. When used in
conjunction with other balance sheet measures, such as acid test and inventory turnover
ratio, the asset management efficiency ratio can be used to determine optimum asset levels
For resale inventories, maintaining well-balanced stockage levels ensures the best use of
resources, and assures greater payback to the entity over time by minimizing iosses through
avoiding excessive inventory maintenance costs.

Note: For accounts receivable, the ratio shown here is inflated by the value of uncon-
firmed deposits See notes to the principal statements - Commissary Resale Stocks. Public
Receivables are only used in computing the average The average inventory-on-hand
excludes paid in transit inventory enroute to OCONUS commissaries, CDCs and on order
inventory
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Department: Agency: Department of Delense

Statement of Financial Position
as of September 30, 1992
(Nearest Dollar)

ASSFT1S

1 Finsncial Resources

Fund Balances with Treasury (Note 2)
Casb (Note 2)

Foreign Currency (Note 2)

Otber Monetary Assets

Investments, Non-Federal

Accounts Recesvable Net Non-Federal (Note 4)
Inventones Held for Sale Net (Note 3)
Loans Receivable Net Non-Federal
Advances Prepavments Non-Federal
Propenty Held for Saic

Other Non-Federal

Intragosemmental dems

(1) Accounts Recevabl, Federal (Note 4)
(2) Loans Recemvabie, Federal

(}) Investments, Federal

(4) Otber Federal

m  Tolal Financial Resources

el S~ 5 TR T T -V N Y

2 Non-Financial Resources:

a3 Resaurces Transicrable to Treasury
inventones Not Held for Sale (Note 3)
Propeny Plani and Equipment (Note 3}
Other
Touwi Non-Financial Resourtes

LI -S4

3  Tolsl Assenrs
LIABILITIES

4. Funded Liabilities

Accounts Pavable Non-Federal (Note 6)
Accrued Interest Payable

Accrued Pavroll and Bencfils (Note 6)
Accrucd Entitlenwent Benefits

Lease Liabilities

Debt

Guaraniees Pavahic

Otber Funded Liabihiies Non Federal

P e N L

Reporting Entitv: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF Consolidating Statements

1992

($298.836,530)

124,657,668
803,521,917

211,944
287,270,722

$916.825,721

1,164,843
31,164,843

$917.990.564

$899 853,743

12,740,034

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these statements

54




DeCA DBOF Financial Statements for FY 1992

v-7-4  Consolidating Statements

Department/Agency: Department of Defense
Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF Consolidating Statements

Statement of Financial Position
as of September 30, 1992
(Nearest Dollar)

LIABILITIES (Continued) 1992

1 Intragovernmenial Liabilities
{1) Accounts Payable, Federal (Note 6)
{2y Debt
(3) Deferred Revenue
(4) Other Funded Liabilities
j  Total Funded Liabilities

$292,154,416

$1,204,748,193

S. Unfunded Liabilities:

3 Accrued Leave (Nate 7) 27,789,475

b Leasc Liabiiitics

¢ Pensions and Other Actuanal Liabilitics

d  Other Unfunded Liabilitics i’

¢. Totat Unfunded Liabilities $27,789,475
6 TOTAL LIABILITIES $1,232,537,668

NET POSITION

7 Fund Balances:
a  Revolving Fund
b Trust Fund
¢ Appropnated Fund
d. Total Fund Balances

(3$286,757,629)

(3286,757,629)

8  lLess Future Funding Requirements (27,789.475)
9 Net Position (Note 8) ($314,547.104)
10 Totai Liabilities and Net Position $917,990,564

The accompanying notes are an integrai pan of tnese statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense
Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF Consolidating Statements

Statement of Operations ( and Changes in Net Position)
for Period Ended September 30, 1992
(Nearest Dollar)

REVENUES AND FINANCING SOURCES

- N B BV A A W)

Appropriations Expenses

Revenue from Sales of Goods

a To the Public

b Intragovermmental

Interest and Penailies, Non-Federai

Interest, Federal

Taxes

Otber Revenues and Financing Sources

Less: Taxes'Receipts Returned to the Treasury
TFotal Revenues and Financing Sources

EXPENSES

q

it
11
12

13

14
15

19

20.

Cust of Goods or Senvices Sold
a2  Tothe Publu

b Intragovernmental
Program or Operation Expunses
Depreciation

Bad Debis and Wnite -Offs
Interest

a  Fedcral Finanting Bank/Treasury
b Fedcral Sccunties

¢  Other

Other Expenses

Total Expenses (Note 9)

Excess (Shortage) of Revenues/Financing Sources
Over Fundcd Expenses Before Adjustments

Plus (Minus) Adjustments:

a  Extraordinary ltems

b Pror Peniod Adjusiments

Excess (Shorntage) of Revenues and Financing
Sousces Over Total Expenses

Plus Unfunded Expenses (Note 9)

Excess (Shortage) of Revenues and Financing
Sources Over Total Expenses

1992

$6,005,021,654
152,004,928

20,072,278

§6,177.098.860

$5.053,117,647
976,638,669
1,013,236,159
109,638

91

6,835,930
7.100.000

$7.057.038,134

(879.939,274)

27,899.114

($907.838,387)

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF Consolidating Statements
Statement of Operations ( and Changes in Net Position)

for Period Ended September 30, 1992

(Nearest Dollar)

EXPENSES (Continued) 1992

1 Net Position, Beginning Balance
22 Excess (Shortage) of Revenues and
Financing Sources over Total Expenses
23 Plus (Minus) Equity Transfers
24. Net Position, Ending Balance

($907,838.367)
593,291.283
(5314.547.109)

The accompanying notes are an integrai pan of these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense
Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF Consolidating Statements

Statement of Cash Flows- Indirect Method
for the Period Ended September 30, 1992
(Nearest Dollar)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1 Excess (Shortage) of Revenues and Financing

Over Total Expenses ($907.838.387)

Adjustments AfTecting Cash Flow:
(37,084 937,247)

2 Appropriations Expensed

3 Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable (412.140,333)
4 Decrease (Increase) in Loans Receivable

S Decrease (Increase)in Otber Assets (804 796.399)
6 Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payvable 1 192,008,159
7 Increase (Decrease) in Debt

&  Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabihities 40.529,509
9 Deprectation and Amortization 109,638
10 Other Unfunded Expenses 27.899,113
11 Other Adjustments £22.209.615
12. Totul Adjustments (36 519 117,945)
13. Net Cush Provided (Used) by Operating Activity (87.426.956,332)

Cash Flows from Non-Operating Activities

14 Proceeds from Sales of Investments

15 Proceeds from Sales of Property  Plant and Equipment

16 Purchase of Investments

17 Purchases of Property, Plant ana Equipment

18 Net Cash Provided (lised) by Non-Operating Activities

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

19 Appropriations (Current Warrants) 7,128.119,802
20 Add:
2 Restorations
b Transfers of Cash from Qtbers
21, Deduct:
a  Withdrawals
b Transfers of Cash to Others
22 Net Appropnations $7.128.119,802

The accompanying notes are 30 integral pan of these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense
Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF Consolidating Statements
Statement of Cash Flows- Indirect Method
for the Period Ended September 30, 1992
(Nearest Dollar)

CASH PROVIDLD (USED) BY FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (Cont) 1992

23 Borrowing from the Public

24 Repavments on Loans

25 Borrowing {rom the Treasury and the Federal
Financing Bank

26 Repayments on Loans from the Treasury and the Federal
Financing Bank

27 Othur Borrowings and Repayments

2K Not Cash Provided «L<ed) by Financing Aclivity $7,128,119,802

249 Nut Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Non-Operating and Financing Adtivitics

30 Fund Bslunce with Treasury, Beginning

31, Fund Balance with | reasury, Ending (3$298,836,530)

17,426,956,332)

The accompanving notes are an integral pan ot these statements
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DepartmenvAgency: Department of Defense
Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF Consolidating Statements
Stutement of Budget and Actual Expenses
for the Period Ended September 30, 1992
(Nearest Dullar)
. . N BUDGET . ACTUAL
Pogram - ° Obligations
Name is) Resources Direct Reimbursed Expenses
Commissary
Openuons $995,819,802 $1,098,860991 $15719.802 $1,055,180,931
Comnussary
Resale
Stoeks 6 132,200 000 6 232728 3%y 6.029,756.316
Totals $7.125.119.802 $7.332,586.371 $15.719.802 $7.084.937,247
Budge1 Reconciination:
A. Total Expenses $7,084,937,247
B Add: .
(1) Capital Acquisitons 1,274,482
(2) Loans Disbursea
(3) Other Expendged Budget Authonty 261,974,975
C  Less:
(1) Depreciation and Aniortization 109,638
(2) Unfunded Annual Leave Expenses 27,789,475
13) Other Unfunaed Expenses S92 2
D Expended Approprialions §$7 260,926,462
E Less Reimbursements 6.194,213.403
F  Expended Appropnanions, Direct $1.066.713.059
The accompanying notes are an integral part of nese statements
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DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY
DEFENSE BUSINESS OPERATIONS FUND
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS FOOTNOTES

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

DeCA Headquarters maintains overall program and fund control for funds distribution
and reporting The DeCA Resource Management Directorate issues fund targets to the six
commissary regions located in CONUS and the funds are accounted for by the DFAS
Cotumbus Center in Columbus, Ohio DeCA Headquarters formaily allots funds to the
European Commissary Region

Centralized accounung suppont for the European Commissary Region is provided by
the Subsistence Finance and Accounting Office Europe, 9th Finance Group,
Zweibruecken, Germany - The Standard Army Finance and Accounting System
(STANFINS) is used for all funds aiiotted to the region Financial reports are provided to
DeCA by the 9th Finance Group Finance and Accounting Office (FAO), and DeCA Head-
quarters consolidates the reports with those from DFAS Columbus Center, then prepares
the required reponts for submission to DFAS Headquarnters

Centralized accounnng suppon for the six CONUS regions, Headquarters and the
service centers is provided by DFAS Columbus Center  Computer processing support for
the accounting and civilian payroll systems used by DFAS Columbus Center to support
DeCA s provided by the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA)

For the six CONUS regions, Headquarters, and the service centers, accounting for
DeCA s Detense Business Operations Fund (DBOF) Commissary Operations and Sur-
charge Collections Account is accomplished using the Defense Business Management
System (DBMS)  Accounting for DeCA's DBOF Resale Stocks is accomplished using
STANFINS

DeCA established a Liaison office in each of the six regions and the East Service Center
to interface the Agency payroll and accounting requirements with DFAS Columbus Center
The biaison function establishes new employees in DBMS, removes separating employees,
processes entitiement changes and payroll deductions, and records commitments and obli-
gations The Midwest Regron liaison office supports the West Service Center and the East
Service Center haison office suppons the Headquarnters  For overseas commissaries man-
aged by CONUS regions. civilian payroll support is obtained from the host installation or
other central payroll activity under an Installation Support Agreement The financial data
1s reported to DFAS Columbus Center for posting to DeCA financial records
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DFAS Columbus Center provides DeCA Headquarters, CONUS regions and service
centers with the following finance and accounting services: disbursing; commercial ac-
counts processing for DBOF - Operations and Surcharge Collections contracts; processing
of intertund and 1080 billings; processing TFO/TBO transactions; accounting reports; and
travel payments Collections/deposits of commissary sales receipts and surcharges are
processed by DFAS Columbus Center for all CONUS commissaries to include Puerto
Rico, Hawaii and Alaska The DFAS Columbus Center also processes returned checks for
these commissaries. Collections/deposits and retumed checks for the other off shore
commissaries managed by a CONUS region are processed by the host finance and account-
ing office at the location and the collections processed to DFAS Columbus Center under
TBO/TFO or cross disbursing procedures

Civilian payroll support for CONUS commissary personnel to include those in Puerto
Rico, Hawaii and Alaska is centralized and obtained from DFAS Columbus Center to
reduce the cross disbursing workload; ensure timeliness of accounting data; and reduce
payroll processing costs DeCA organizations in the CONUS central pay system input
time and attendance using communications lines into DBMS

In CONUS, resource management personnel in the liaison offices input commitments
and obligations directly into the accounting system (DBMS) over the dedicated communica-
tion lines for contracts, Military Interdepartmental Purchase Requests (MIPRs), and travel
orders that are funded by Commissary Operations or Surcharge Collections. Documenta-
tion to suppont the obligation is retained under controlled conditions. Reviews of uniiqui-
dated obligations are performed by the resource management organization that input the
obligation and deobligations are made where appropriate  DFAS Columbus Center is
provided copies ot obligation documents to support the accounting records as well as the
contract payment

Obligations for subsistence delivery orders placed against BDOs/BPAs are entered into
the tinancial system at the same time the receipt transactions are processed into the finan-
cial system The receipt data is forwarded electronicaily each business day from the
commissaries and central distribution centers (CDCs) into a computer located at the East
Service Center and the data loaded into SAVES. SAVES produces the accounting transac-
tion file for obligations and receipts during the daily cycle. The transaction file is passed
to the Dayton, Ohio computer center for posting to the STANFINS accounting records
Commissaries and CDCs retain the hard copy receiving reports under appropriate controls
to support the payments.

Milstrip requisitions are issued for commissary resale subsistence and Troop Issue
subsistence The commissary or CDC electronically transmits the requisition data daily 1o
the East Service Center computer. Each workday the East Service Center computer opera-
tions passes the transaction file to the Dayton Ohio computer center for posting of obliga-
tions to the STANFINS accounting records
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The DeCA East Service Center and West Service Center perform resource management
functions related to CONUS stock fund bill paying SAVES and reconciliation of CONUS
stock fund inventory supply records with the financial records The West Service Center
has an added mission to manage the DeCA worldwide merchandise coupon redemption
program which includes oversight of processing from acceptance to redemption, accounting
for redemptions and losses, contractor oversight, and processing documentation to return
the cash to the DeCA Commissary Resale fund.

DFAS Columbus Center performs the disbursing function for DeCA funds executed
through the DFAS Columbus Center with the exception of any TBO/TFO or cross dis-
bursements. For CONUS resale commercial accounts processed by the DeCA service
centers the disbursement transactions to STANFINS and the voucher and check producing
information is passed electronically from the East Service Center computer operations to
DFAS Columbus Center for update of the accounting records and producing the voucher
and check The DeCA service centers retain the backup payment documentation. DFAS
Columbus Center produces the check and the voucher and mails the payment to the vendor
DFAS Columbus Center provides check numbers to the service centers to update the
automated bills register in SAVES

Commissary collections affect the three types of funds received by DeCA The daily
commissary sales receipts and surcharge collections (i e., 5 percent added at checkout to
patron’s purchases) are deposited the DBOF Commissary Resale fund and the Surcharge
Collections fund, respectively The redemption of merchandise coupons represents a
collection for the commissary resale (i e, reimbursement for face value of coupon) and the
DBOF Commissary Operations fund (i e , reimbursement of the handling costs). The sale
of cardboard and excess commissary equipment represents earnings to the Surcharge
Collections fund Discounts eamed on the payment of resale subsistence commercial
accounts are transferred to the Surcharge Collections fund as earnings. Additionally, fees
from merchandising agreements with manufacturers for store sheif space aliocation are
transferred to the Surcharge Collections fund as earnings.

Fiscal Year 1992 represents the first year that the Defense Commissary Agency has
prepared financial statements as required by Section 252 of Title 10, United States Code
The accompanying financial statements account for all funds for which the Agency is
responsibie The audited financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of account-
ing as required by Title 2, “Accounting Principles and Standards” of the Policy and
Procedures Manual for Guidance of Federal Agencies, published by the U.S. General
Accounting Office
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Note 2: Fund Balances with Treasury, Cash and Foreign Currency:

A Fund Balances with Treasury

(1) Trust Funds
(2) Revolving Funds ($298,836,530)

(3) Appropriated Funds

(4) Other Fund Types
Total ($298,836,530)

B Cash
(1) Restricted Cash
(2) Unrestricted Cash
Total

C Foreign Curreney

D Other Information:

(1) Fund Balance with Treasury does not reflect unfunded expenditure authority of
$110,500,000 received and executed during FY 92

(2) Fund Balance with Treasury does not include $3,100,000 contingent appropriated
for acquisition of war reserves

(3) Cash balance reflects net outlays for the fiscal year, and is understated by uncon-
firmed deposits ot $198 079,958 The unconfirmed deposits are reflected as pant of Ac-
counts Receivable, Federal.
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Note 3: Inventories

) @) (3) )
A Inventory Inventory Allowance Inventory Valuation
Categornies Amount for Losses Net Method
(1) Inventory
Held for $803,521,917 $803,521,917 FIFO
Sale
(2) Inventory Not
Held For Sale
(a) Own Use
(b) Stockpile
Matenals
(¢) Other
(3) Tonal $803,521,917 $803,521,917

B Other Information: DeCA Resale inventory includes totals capitalized from the
prior military Services, and current year acquisitions/gains less sales and losses The
reliability of totals presented here are addressed in-depth in the Supplemental Financial and
Management Information

Note 4: Receivables

A Accounts Receivable

(1) Federal $287,270,722
(2) Non-Federal 124,657,668

Total $411,928,390

B Other Information: The Federal receivable amount includes unconfirmed deposits of
$198,079,958, and is thus overstated by that amount. (See note 2 above). This condition
is caused by a programmed posting error, which is addressed in more detail in the
Suppiemental Financial and Management Information
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Note 5: Property, Plant and Equipment

() (2) 3) (4) (5)

Class of Deprec Service Acquis. Accum. Net Book
Assets Method Life Value Deprec Value
A Land
B Structures
C Military

Equipment SL 1-5 $1,274,482 $109,638 $1,164,844
D ADP Software
E Equipment
F Assets Under

Capital Lease
G Other
H Nat Resources
I Const In Progress

Total $1,274,482 $109.638 $1,164,844

* Keys:

Depreciation Method Range of Service Life
Straight Line 1-5 Years

Other Information: This category shows the value of capital assets transferred from the
former Service commissary systems Additional information is provided in the
Supplemental Financial and Management Information

Note 6; Other Funded Liabilities

A Other Funded Non-Federai Federal Total
Liabilities
(1) Accts Payable $899,853,743 $292,154,416 $1,192,008,159
(2) Accrued Payroli
and Benefits 12,740,034 12,740,034
Total $912,593,777 $292,154,416 $1,204,748,193

B Other Information: The non-Federal accounts payable balance reflects a $205 million
decrease to bring the control account into balance with the accounts payable subsidiary
account  This adjustment was effected at fiscal year-end when the control balance was
tound 1o be overstated because of system problems The reliability of the non-Federal
balance is addressed in the Supplemental Financial and Management Information
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Note 7: Other Unfunded Liabilities
A Other Unfunded Total
Liabilities
(1) Accrued Leave $27,789,475
Total $27,789.475
Note 8: Fund Balances
Commissary Commissary
Operations Resale Stocks Total
A Unexpended
Appropriations $169,952,456 $465,117,413 $635,069,869
B Invested Capital
C Cumulative Results
of Operations (1,039,336,851) 131,498,464 (907,838,387)
D Donations
E Transfers 1,274,482 592,016,801 593,291,283
F  Total ($868,109,914) $1,188,632,679 $320,522,765

G Other Information:

(1) Unexpended appropriations for Commissary Operations does not include $110.5

million of unfunded expenditure authority received and executed during FY 92

(2) Resale Stock transfers are comprised of inventories decapitalized by the former

service commissary systems at the end of FY 92 and capitalized by DeCA during FY 92

Operations transfers are comprised of capital assets transferred-in The reliability of both
capitalization balances is addressed in the Supplemental Financial and Management Infor-
mation
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Note 9: Operating Expenses

FY 92
A Operating Expenses by Object Classification
(1) Personal Services and Benefits $573,594,125
(2) Travel and Transportation 114,830,366
(3) Rental, Communication, Utilities 2,285,979
(4) Printing and Reproduction 321,280
(5) Contractual Services 319,227,689
(6) Supplies and Materials (Operations) 6,032,300,595
(7) Equipment not Capitalized 542,079
(8) Grants, Subsidies & Contributions
(9) Insurance, Claims & Indemnities
(10) Other 41,835.043
(11) Total Expenses by Object Classification $7,084.937,247
B Operating Expenses by Program
(1) Commissary Operations $1,055,180,931
(2) Commissary Resale Stocks 6,029,756,316
Total $7,084.937.247

C Other Information: Expenses for Commissary Operations are understated by
approximately $64 56 million because year-end accruals for specific expense types were
not processed by the Agency Additional data is provided in Supplemental Financial and
Management Information
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DepartmentvAgency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Operations
Statement of Financial Position

as of September 30, 1992

(Nearest Dollar)

ASSETS 1992

1. Financial Resources

Fund Balances with Treasury (Note 2) (3810,147,544)
Casb (Note 2)

Foreign Currency (Note 2)

Other Monetary Assels

Jnvesiments, Non-Federal

Accounts Receivable, Nct Non-Federal 43,541
Inventones Held for Saic, Net

Loans Recervable, Net Non-Federal

Advances Prepayments Non-Federa) 211,944
Property beld for Salc

Otber, Nen-Federal

Intragovemmental items.

(1) Accounts Recervable Federal 2,133.00
(2} Loans Recenvable, Federal

(M) Investments Federal

(4) Other, Federal

m  Total Finuncial Resources ———W)

XY - M A O~ Tw

2 Non-Financial Resources
a  Resources Transforable to Treasury
b Inventones Not Held for Sale

¢ Property  Plant and Equipment (Note 3y 1,164,843

d Other

¢ Total Non-Financial Resources 1,164,843
3 Total Assets (3806,594,206)

LIABILITIES

4. Funded Liabilities

Accounts Payable, Non-Federal (Note 4) 118,383,910
Accrucd Interest Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits (Nolte 4) 12,740,034

Accrued Entitlement Benefits

Lease Liabilities

Debt

Guaraniees Payable

Other Funded Liabilities Nos-Federal

oM ™A an Te

The accompanying notes are an integral pan ot these statements
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6

7.

10.

J

LIABILITIES (Continued)

Intragovemmental Liabilities

(1) Accounts Payable, Federai (Note 4)
(2) Decbt

(3) Deferred Revenue

(4) Other Funded Liabilities

Total Funded Liabilities

Unfunded Liabilities:

a

®» o~

Adccrued Leave (Note 5)

Lease Liahilities

Pensions and Other Actuanial Liabilities
Other Unfunded Liabilities

Total Unfunded Liabilities

TOTAIL LIABILITIES

NEI POSITION

Fund Balances:

an ow

Revolving Fund
Trust Fund
Appropriated Fund
Totsl Fund Balances

Less Future Funding Requirements
Net Position (Note 6)

Total Liabilities and Net Position

Department/Agency: Department of Defense
Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Operations
Statement of Financial Position
as of September 30, 1992
(Nearest Dollar)

1992

$72,554,745

$203,678,689

27,789,475

$27,789,475

$231,468,164

(1,010,272,895)

($1,010,272,895)

(27,789.475)
($1,038,062,370)

($806,594,206)

The accompanying notes are an integral pant ot these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense
Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Operations
Statement of Operations ( and Changes in Net Position)
for Period Ended September 30, 1992
(Nearest Doilar)
REVENUES AND FINANCING SOURCES 1992
1. Appropriations Expensed
2 Revenue from Sales of Goods

a  To the Public

b  Intragovernmental
3 Interest and Penaliies, Non-Federal
4  Interest, Federal
5 Taxes
6  Other Revenues and Financing Sources $15,844,080
7 Less: Taxcs/Receipts Returned to Treasury
8. Total Revenues and Financing Sources $15,844,080
EXPENSES

9 Cost of Goods or Services Sold
a  To the Public
b Intragovermmenta)
10 Program ar Operation Expunses
11 Depreciation
12 Bad Debts and Write-offs
13 Interest
a  Federal Financing Bank/Treasury
b Federal Sccunties
¢ Other
14 Other Expenses
15, Total kxpenses (Note 7)

16 Excess (Shortage) of Revenues and
Financing Sources Over Funded Expenses
Belore Adjustmients

17 Plus (Minus) Adjustments:

a  Extraordinary Items
b Pror Period Adjustments

18 Excess (Shortage) of Revenues and
Financing Sources Over Total Expenses

19 Plus Unfunded Expenses (Note 7)

20. Excess (Shortage) of Revenues and
Financing Sources Over Total Expenses

1.013,236,159
109,638
91

6.835,930
7,100,000
($1,027,281,818)

(1,011,437,738)

($1,011,437,738)

27,899,113

($1.039.336,851)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Operations
Statement of Operations ( and Changes in Net Position)

for Period Ended September 30, 1992

(Nearest Dollar)

EXPENSES (Continved) 1992

21 Nect Position, Beginning Balance
22 Excess (Shortage) of Revenves and
Financing Sources over Total Expenses
3 Plus (Minus) Equity Transfers
24. Net Position, Ending Balance

($1.039,336,851)
1,274,482
(§1,038,062,370)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Operations
Statement of Cash Flows- Indirect Method

for the Period Ended September 30, 1992

{Nearest Dollar)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1992
1 Excess (Shonage) of Revenues and Financing

Over Total Expenses $1,039,336,851
Adjustments Affecting Cash Flow:
2 Appropnations Expenses (1,055,180,851)
3 Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable (2,388,495)
4  Decrease (Increase ) in Loans Recetvable
5  Dcurease (Increase) in Other Asscts (1,274,482)

190,938,656

6 Increasc (Decrease)in Accounts Payable

7 Increase {(Decrease) in Debt

8 Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 40,529,509
9 Depreciation and Antortization 109,638
10 Otber Unfunded Expenses 27,899,113
11 Other Adjustments 32,736,497
12. Total Adjustments ($766,630,495)
13 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities ($1.805,967,346)

Cash Flows from Nen-Operating Activities:

14 Proceeds from Sales of Investments

15 Proceeds from Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
16 Purchases of Investments

17 Purchases of Propeny, Plant and Equipment

18 Net Cush Provided (Used) by Non-Operating Activities

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

19 Appropnations (Current Warrants) 995,819,862
20 Add:
a  Restorations
b Transfers of Cash from Others
21 Deduct:
a  Withdrawals
b Transfers of Cash 1o Others
22 Net Appropriations 995,819,802

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Operations
Statement of Cash Flows- Indirect Method

for the Period Ended September 30, 1992

(Nearest Dollar)

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (Cont.) 1992

23 Borrowing from the Public

24 Repayments on Loans

25 Borowing from the Treasury and the Federal
Financing Bank

26 Repayments on Loans from the Treasury and
the Federal Financing Bank

27 Ortber Borrowings and Repayments

28 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing

Activities $995,819,802
29 Nct Cash Provided (Used) by Operaling,

Non-Operating and Financing Activities (1,805,967,933)
30 Fund Balance with Treasury, Beginning
31 Fund Balance with Treasury, Ending m

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Operations
Statement of Budget and Actual Expenses

for the Period Ended September 30, 1992

(Nearest Dollar)

BUDGET ACTUAL
Program Obligations
Name (s} Resources Direct Reimbursed Expenses
Commissary
Opcrations $995,819,802 $1,098,860,991 $15,719,802 $1,055,180,931
Totals $995.819 802 $1,098,860,991 $15,719,802 $1,055,180,931
Budgel Recondiliation:
A Total Expenses $1,055,180,931
B Add:

(1) Capital Acquisitions
(2) Loans Disbursed

(3) Otber Expended Budget Authority 1,274,482
C  Less:

(1) Depreciation and Amontization 109,638

(2) Untunded Annual Leave Expenses 27,789,475

(3) Other Unfunded Expenses 59,361,129
D Expended Appropriations $1,027,201,081
E LessReimbursements 15,719,802
F  Expcnded Appropnations, Direct $1,011,481,279

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY DEFENSE BUSINESS
OPERATIONS FUND OPERATIONS FOOTNOTES

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

DeCA Headquarters maintains overall program and fund control for funds distribution
and reporting  The DeCA Resource Management Directorate issues fund targets to the six
commissary regions located in CONUS and the funds are accounted for by the DFAS
Columbus Center in Columbus, Ohioc DeCA Headquarters formally allots funds to the
European Commissary Region

Centralized accounting support for the European Commissary Region is provided by
the Subsistence Finance and Accounting Office Europe, 9th Finance Group,
Zweibruecken, Germany The Standard Army Finance and Accounting System
(STANFINS) is used for all funds allotted to the region. Financial reports are provided to
DeCA by the 9th Finance Group Finance and Accounting Office (FAQ), and DeCA Head-
quarters consolidates the reports with those from DFAS Columbus Center, then prepares
the required reports for submission to DFAS Headquarters.

Centralized accounting support for the six CONUS regions, Headquarnters and the
service centers is provided by DFAS Columbus Center. Computer processing support for
the accounting and civilian payroll systems used by DFAS Columbus Center to support
DeCA is provided by the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA).

For the six CONUS regions, Headquarters, and the service centers, accounting for
DeCA's Defense Business Operations Fund (DBOF) Commissary Operations and Sur-
charge Collections Account is accomplished using the Defense Business Management
System (DBMS) Accounting for DeCA’s DBOF Resale Stocks is accomplished using
STANFINS

DeCA established a liaison office in each of the six regions and the East Service Center
to interface the Agency payroll and accounting requirements with DFAS Columbus Center.
The liaison function establishes new employees in DBMS, removes separating employees,
processes entitlement changes and payroll deductions, and records commitments and obli-
gations The Midwest Region liaison office supports the West Service Center and the East
Service Center liaison office supports the Headquarters For overseas commissaries man-
aged by CONUS regions, civilian payroll support is obtained from the host installation or
other central payroll activity under an Installation Support Agreement The financial data
is reported to DFAS Columbus Center for posting to DeCA financial records
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DFAS Columbus Center provides DeCA Headquarters, CONUS regions and service
centers with the following finance and accounting services: disbursing; commercial ac-
counts processing for DBOF - Operations and Surcharge Collections contracts; processing
at interfund and 1080 billings: processing TFO/TBO transactions; accounting repors; and
travel payments  Collections/deposits of commissary sales receipts and surcharges are
processed by DFAS Columbus Center for all CONUS commissaries to include Puerto
Rico, Hawaii and Alaska. The DFAS Columbus Center also processes returned checks for
these commissaries  Collections/deposits and retumned checks for the other off shore
commissaries managed by a CONUS region are processed by the host finance and account-
ing office at the location and the collections processed to DFAS Columbus Center under
TBO/TFO or cross disbursing procedures.

Civilian payroll support for CONUS commissary personnel to include those in Puerto
Rico, Hawaii and Alaska is centralized and obtained from DFAS Columbus Center to
reduce the cross disbursing workload; ensure timeliness of accounting data; and reduce
payroll processing costs DeCA organizations in the CONUS central pay system input
time and attendance using communications lines into DBMS.

In CONUS. resource management personnel in the liaison offices input commitments
and obligations directly into the accounting system (DBMS) over the dedicated communica-
tion lines for contracts, Military Interdepantmental Purchase Requests (MIPRs), and travel
orders that are funded by Commissary Operations or Surcharge Collections. Documenta-
tion to supporn the obligation is retained under controlled conditions. Reviews of unliqui-
dated obligations are performed by the resource management organization that input the
obligation and deobligations are made where appropriate. DFAS Columbus Center is
provided copies of obligation documents to suppont the accounting records as well as the
contract payment

Obligations for subsistence delivery orders placed against BDCs/BPAs are entered into
the financial system at the same time the receipt transactions are processed into the finan-
cial system  The receipt data is forwarded electronically each business day from the
commissanes and central distribution centers (CDCs) into a computer located at the East
Service Center and the data loaded into SAVES SAVES produces the accounting transac-
tion file for obligations and receipts during the daily cycle. The transaction file is passed
to the Dayton, Ohio computer center for posting to the STANFINS accounting records.
Commissaries and CDCs retain the hard copy receiving reports under appropriate controls
to support the payvments

Milstrip requisitions are issued for commissary resale subsistence and Troop Issue
subsistence The commissary or CDC electronically transmits the requisition data daily to
the East Service Center computer. Each workday the East Service Center computer opera-
tions passes the transaction file to the Dayton Ohio computer center for posting of obliga-
tions to the STANFINS accounting records.
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The DeCA East Service Center and West Service Center perform resource management
functions related to CONUS stock fund bill paying SAVES and reconciliation of CONUS
stock fund inventory supply records with the financial records. The West Service Center
has an added mission to manage the DeCA worldwide merchandise coupon redemption
program which includes oversight of processing from acceptance to redemption, accounting
for redemptions and losses, contractor oversight, and processing documentation to return
the cash to the DeCA Commissary Resale fund.

DFAS Columbus Center performs the disbursing function for DeCA funds executed
through the DFAS Columbus Center with the exception of any TBO/TFO or cross dis-
bursements For CONUS resale commercial accounts processed by the DeCA service
centers the disbursement transactions to STANFINS and the voucher and check producing
information is passed electronically from the East Service Center computer operations to
DFAS Columbus Center for update of the accounting records and producing the voucher
and check The DeCA service centers retain the backup payment documentation. DFAS
Columbus Center produces the check and the voucher and mails the payment to the vendor
DFAS Columbus Center provides check numbers to the service centers to update the
automated bills register in SAVES.

Commissary collections affect the three types of funds received by DeCA. The daily
commissary sales receipts and surcharge collections (i.e, 5 percent added at checkout to
patron’s purchases) are deposited the DBOF Commissary Resale fund and the Surcharge
Collections fund, respectively. The redemption of merchandise coupons represents a
collection for the commissary resale (i e., reimbursement for face value of coupon) and the
DBOF Commissary Operations fund (i.e., reimbursement of the handling costs). The sale
of cardboard and excess commissary equipment represents earnings to the Surcharge
Collections fund Discounts eamed on the payment of resale subsistence commercial
accounts are transferred to the Surcharge Collections fund as earnings. Additionally, fees
from merchandising agreements with manufacturers for store shelf space allocation are
transferred to the Surcharge Collections fund as earnings

Fiscal Year 1992 represents the first year that the Defense Commissary Agency has
prepared financial statements as required by Section 252 of Title 10, United States Code.
The accompanying financial statements account for all funds for which the Agency is
responsible The audited financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of account-
ing as required by Title 2, “Accounting Principles and Standards” of the Policy and
Procedures Manual for Guidance of Federal Agencies, published by the U.S. General
Accounting Office
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C

A
B
C

mmg

(1) Trust Funds
(2) Revolving Funds

(3) Appropriated Funds
(4) Other Fund Types

Total
Cash

(1) Restricted Cash

(2) Unrestricted Cash

Total

Foreign Currency

Class of
Assets

Land
Structures
Mihtary
Equipment
ADP Software
Equipment
Assets Under
Capital Lease
Other
Nat Resources
Const In
Progress
Total

* Keys:

Depreciation Method
Straight Line

A Fund Balances with Treasury

" @ (3

Deprec Service  Acquis
Method Life Value
SL 1-5 $1,274.482

$1,274.482

Note 2: Fund Balances with Treasury, Cash and Foreign Currency

($810,147,544)

(3810,147,544)

D Other Information: Fund Balance with Treasury does not reflect unfunded expenditure
authority of $110,500,000 Cash balance reflects net outlays reported to Treasury.

Note 3: Property, Plant and Equipment

(3)
Accum Net Book
Deprec. Value
$109,638 $1,164,844
$109.638 $1.164,844

Range of Service Life

1-5 Years
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J Other Intormation: This total reflects the vaiue of capital assets transferred from the
former Service commissary systems  Additional information regarding the transfer of
capital assets is provided in the Supplemental Financial and Management Information

Note 4: Other Funded Liabilities

A Other Funded Non-Federal Federal Total
Liabilities
(1) Accounts Payable $118,383,910 $72,554,745 $190,938,655
(2) Accrued Payroll
and Benefits 12,740,034 12,740,034
Total $131,123.944 $72,554,745 $203,678,689

Note 5;: Other Unfunded Liabilities

A Other Unfunded Total
Liabilities
(1) Accrued Leave $27.789,475
Total $27.789.475

Note 6: Fund Balances:

Commissary
Operations Total

A Unexpended

Appropriations $169,952,456 $169,952.456
B Invested Capital
C Cumulative Resuits

of Operations (1,039.336,851) (1,039,336,851)
D Donations
E Transfers 1,274 482 1,274,482
F Total ($868,109,914) (3868,109,914)

G Other Information: Unexpended appropriations for Commissary Operations excludes
$110 5 million of unfunded expenditure authority received and executed during FY 92
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Note 7: Operating Expenses:

FY 92
A Operating Expenses by Object Classification
(1) Personal Services and Benefits $573,594,125
(2) Travel and Transportation 114,830,366
(3) Rental, Communication, Utilities 2,285,979
(4) Printing and Reproduction 321,280
(5) Contractual Services 319,227,689
(6) Supplies and Materials (Operations) 2,544,279
(7) Equipment not Capitalized 542,079
(8) Grants, Subsidies & Contributions
(9) Insurance, Claims & Indemnities
(10)  Other 41,835,043
(11)  Total Expenses by Object Classification $1,055,180,931
B Operating Expenses by Program
(1) Comnussary Operations $1.055,180.931
Total $1,055,180.931

C  Other Information: Expenses for Commissary Operations are understated by
approximately 364 56 million because year-end accruals for specific expense types were
nat processed by the Agency Additional data regarding the shonfall of expenses is
provided in Supplemental Financial and Management Information.
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AGENCY DEFENSE
BUSINESS OPERATIONS
FUND RESALE STOCKS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial Statements V-7-2-3

Department/Agency: Department of Defense
Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Resale Stocks

Statement of Financial Position
as of September 30, 1992
(Nearest Dollar)

ASSETS 1992
1. Financial Resovrces

Fund Balances with Treasury (Note 2) $511,311,014
Cash (Note 2)

Foreign Currency (Note 2)

Other Monetary Assels

Investments, Non-Federal

Accounts Receivable, Net - Non-Federai (Note 4) 124,614,127
Inventones Held for Sale, Net (Note 3) 803,521,917
Loans Receivabie Net - Non-Federal

Advances Prepayments Non-Federal

Property held for Sale

Other, Non-Federal

Intragovemmiental stems:

(1) Accounts Receivable Federal (Note 4) 285,137,712
(2) Loans Receivable Federal

(3) Investments, Federal

(4) Other, Federal

m. Total Financial Resources 31,724,584,770

= - e Mo an gw

2. Non-Financial Resources:

a  Resources Transferable to Treasury

b Inventories Not Held for Sale (Note 3)

¢ Propenty, Plant and Equipment

d  Other

e. Total Non-Financisl Resources
3. Total Assets $1,724,584,770
LIABILITIES

4. Funded Liabilities

Accounts Payable, Non-Federal (Note §) $781,469,833
Accrued |nterest Payabie

Accrued Payroll and Benefits

Accrued Entitlement Benefits

Lease Liabilities

Debt

Guarantees Payable

Other Funded Liabilines Non Federal

TR e an s

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these statements.
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Financial Statements

6.

7.

10.

LIABU 1 LS (Continued)

Intragovernmental Liabilities

(1) Accounts Pavable, Federal (Note 5)
(2) Dcbt

(3) Deferred Revenue

(4) Other Funded Liabilities

Total Funded Liabilities

Unfunded Liabilities:

LIS

Accrued Leave

Lease Liabshites

Pensions and Other Actuarial Liabilities
Otber Unfunded Liabilities

Total Unfunded Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NEI POSITION

Fund Balances:

a
b
¢
d

Revolving Fund
Trust Fund
Appropnatcd Fund
Total Fund Balances

Less Future Funding Requirements
Net Position (Nate 6)

Total Liabilities and Net Position

Department/Agency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Resale Stocks
Statement of Financial Position
as of September 30, 1992
(Nearest Dollar)

1992
$219,599,671

$1,001,069,504

$1,001,069,504

723,515,266
$723,515,266

$723,515,266

§1,724,584,770

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these statements
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DepartmenVAgency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Resale Stocks
Statement of Operations ( and Changes in Net Position)

for Period Ended September 30, 1992

(Nearest Doliar)

REVENUES AND FINANCING SOURCES 1992

—

Appropriations Expenscd
2 Revenue from Sales of Goods

a  To the Public $6,005,021,654
b Intragovernmental 152,004,928
3 Interest and Penalties, Non-Federal
4 Interest, Federal
5 Taxes
6  Other Revenues and Financing Sources 4,228,198
7 Less:  Taxes/Receipts Returned to Treasury
8 Total Revenues and Financing Sources $6,161,254,780
EXPENSES
9 Cost of Goods or Services Sold
a  To the Pubii $5,053,117,647
b Intragovermnmental 976,638,669

10 Program or Opcration Expenses

11 Depreaation

12 Bad Debts and Write-Otfs

13 Interest
a  Federal Financing Bank/Treasury
b Federal Securities

¢ Other
14 Other Expenses
15. Total Expenses (Notc 7) $6,029,756,316

16 Excess (Shortage) of Revenues/Financing
Sources Over Total Expenses Before
Adjustments 131,498,464
17 Plus (Minus) Adjustments:
a  Extraordinary ltems
b Prior Period Adjusiments
18 Excess (Shortage) of Revenues/Financing
Sousces Over Total Expenses
19 Plus Unfunded Expenses (Note 7)
20. Excess(Shortage) of Revenues/Financing
Sources Over Funded Expenses $131,498,464

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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DepartmentAgency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Resale Stocks
Statement of Operations ( and Changes in Net Position)

for Period Ended September 30, 1992

(Nearest Dollar)

EXPENSES (Continued) 1992

Net Posation, Beginning Balance
22 Excess (Shortage) of Revenues/Financing
Sources over Total Expenses $131,498,464
592,016,801

23 Plus (Minus) Equity Transfers A
24 Net Position, Ending Balance $723,515,265

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Resale Stocks
Statement of Cash Flows- Indirect Method

for the Period Ended September 30, 1992

(Nearest Dollar)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1992

1 Excess (Shortage) of Revenue/Financing
Over Total Expenses $131,498,464

Adjustments Affecting Cash Flow:

Appropriations Expenses ($6,029,756,316)
Decrease {Increase) in Accounts Receivable (409,751,838)
Decrease (Increase) in Loans Receivable .
Decrease (Increase) in Other Assets (803,521,917
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 1,001,069,503
Increase (Decrease) in Debt

8 Increase (Decrease) in Otber liabilities

9 Depreciation and Amortization

10 Other Unfunded Expenses

ES = BV e ]

11 Other Adjustments 489,473,118
12. Total Adjustments ($5,752,487,450)
13. Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities ($5,620,988,986)

Casb Flows from Non-Operating Activities:

14 Proceeds from Sales of Investments
15 Proceeds from Sales of Property, Plant
and Equipment
16 Purchases of Investments
17 Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment
18. Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Operating Activities

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

19 Appropriations (Current Warrants) $6,132,300,000
20 Add:
a2 Restorations
b  Transfers of Cash from Others
21 Deduct:
a2 Withdrawals
b Transfers of Cash to Others
22 Net Appropriations $6,132,300,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

91



DeCA DBOF Financial Statements for FY 1992

v-7-2-8  Financial Statements

Department/Agency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Resale Stocks
Statement of Cash Flows- Indirect Method

for the Period Ended September 30, 1992

(Nearest Dollar)

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (Cont.) 1992

23 Bomowing from the Public

24 Repayments on Loans

25. Borrowing from the Treasury and the Federal
Financing Bank

26 Rcpayments on Loans from the Treasury and
the Federa) Financing Bank

27 Otber Borrowings and Repayments

28 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing

Activilies $6,132,300,000
29 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating

Non-Operating and Financing Activities (5,620,988,986)
30. Fund Balance with Treasury, Beginning
31 Fund Balance with Treasury, Ending $511,311,014

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these statements
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Department/Agency: Department of Defense

Reporting Entity: Defense Commissary Agency DBOF - Resale Stocks
Statement of Budget and Actual Expenses

for the Period Ended September 30, 1992

(Nearest Dollar)

BUDGET ACTUAL
Program Obligations
Name (s) Resources Direct Reimbursed Expenses
Commissary
Resale
Stocks $6,132,300,000 $6 233,725,380 $6,029,756,316
Totals $6.132,300.000 $6.233,725,380 $6,029,756,316
BudgutReconciliation:

A Totai Expenses $6,029,756,316

B Add:
(13 Capital Acquisitions
(2) Loans Disbursed
(31 Other Expended Budget Authority 203,969,065

C  Less:
(1) Depreciation and Amontization
(2} Unfunded Annual Leave Expenses
(2) Other Unfunded Expenses

D Expended Appropriations $6,233,725.381
E Le<s Reimbursements 6,178,493 601
F  Expcnded Appropriations, Direct $55,231,780

The accompanying notes are an inte.mal part of these statements
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DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY DEFENSE BUSINESS
OPERATIONS FUND- RESALE STOCKS FOOTNOTES

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

DeCA Headquarters maintains overall program and fund control for funds distribution
and reporting. The DeCA Resource Management Directorate issues fund targets to the six
commissary tegions located in CONUS and the funds are accounted for by the DFAS
Columbus Center in Columbus, Ohio DeCA Headguarters formally ailots funds to the
European Commissary Region

Centralized accounting support for the European Commissary Region is provided by
the Subsistence Finance and Accounting Office Europe, 9th Finance Group,
Zweibruecken, Germany The Standard Army Finance and Accounting System
(STANFINS) is used for all funds allotted to the region Financial reports are provided to
DeCA by the 9th Finance Group Finance and Accounting Office (FAO), and DeCA Head-
quarters consolidates the reports with those from DFAS Columbus Center, then prepares
the required reports for submission to DFAS Headquarters.

Centralized accounting support for the six CONUS regions, Headquarters and the
service centers is provided by DFAS Columbus Center Computer processing support for
the accounting and civilian payroll systems used by DFAS Columbus Center to support
DeCA is provided by the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA)

For the six CONUS regions, Headquarters, and the service centers, accounting for
DeCA's Defense Business Operations Fund (DBOF) Commissary Operations and Sur-
charge Callections Account is accomplished using the Defense Business Management
System (DBMS)  Accounting for DeCA’s DBOF Resale Stocks is accomplished using
STANFINS

DeCA established a liaison office in each of the six regions and the East Service Center
10 interface the Agency payroll and accounting requirements with DFAS Columbus Center
The liaison function establishes new employees in DBMS, removes separating employees,
processes entitlement changes and payroll deductions, and records commitments and obli-
gations The Midwest Region liaison office supports the West Service Center and the East
Service Center liaison office supports the Headquarters For overseas commissaries man-
aged by CONUS regions, civilian payroll support is obtained from the host installation or
other central payroll activity under an Installation Support Agreement The financial data
is reponted to DFAS Columbus Center for posting to DeCA financial records
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DFAS Columbus Center provides DeCA Headquarters, CONUS regions and service
centers with the tollowing finance and accounting services: disbursing; commercial ac-
counts processing for DBOF - Operations and Surcharge funded contracts; processing of
interfund and 1080 billings; processing TFO/TBO transactions; accounting reports; and
travel payments  Collections/deposits of commissary sales receipts and surcharges are
processed by DFAS Columbus Center for all CONUS commissaries to include those
located in Puerto Rico, Hawaii and Alaska. The DFAS Columbus Center also processes
returned checks for these commissaries. Collections/deposits and returned checks for the
other offshore commissaries managed by a CONUS region are processed by the host
finance and accounting office at the location and the collections processed to DFAS Co-
lumbus Center under TBO/TFO or cross disbursing procedures.

Civilian payroll support for CONUS commissary personnel to include those in Puerto
Rico, Hawaii and Alaska is centralized and obtained from DFAS Columbus Center to
reduce the cross disbursing workload; ensure timeliness of accounting data; and reduce
payroll processing costs. DeCA organizations in the CONUS central pay system input
time and attendance using communications lines into DBMS

In CONUS. resource management personnel in the liaison offices input commitments
and obligations directly into the accounting system (DBMS) over the dedicated communica-
tion lines for contracts, Military Interdepartmental Purchase Requests (MIPRs), and travel
orders that are funded by Commissary Operations or Surcharge Collections. Documenta-
tion to suppon the obligation is retained under controlied conditions. Reviews of unliqui-
dated obligations are performed by the resource management organization that inputs the
obligation and deobligations are made where appropriate. DFAS Columbus Center is
provided copies of obligation documents to support the accounting records as well as the
contract payment

Obligations for subsistence delivery orders placed against BDOs/BPAs are entered into
the financial system at the same time the receipt transactions are processed into the finan-
cial system The receipt data is forwarded electronically each business day from the
commissanes and central distribution centers (CDCs) into a computer located at the East
Service Center and the data loaded into SAVES. SAVES produces the accounting transac-
tion file for obligations and receipts during the daily cycle. The transaction file is passed
to the Dayton. Ohio computer center for posting to the STANFINS accounting records.
Commissaries and CDCs retain the hard copy receiving reports under appropriate controls
to support the payments.

MILSTRIP requisitions are issued for commissary resale subsistence and Troop Issue
subsistence The commissary or CDC electronically transmits the requisition data daily to
the East Service Center computer Each workday the East Service Center computer opera-
tions passes the transaction file to the Dayton Ohio computer center for posting of obliga-
tions to the STANFINS accounting records
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The DeCA East Service Center and West Service Center perform resource management
functions related to CONUS stock fund bill paying and reconciliation of CONUS stock
fund inventory suppiy records with the financial records The West Service Center has an
added mission to manage the DeCA worldwide merchandise coupon redemption program
which includes oversight of processing from acceptance to redemption, accounting for
redemptions and losses, contractor oversight, and processing documentation to return the
cash to the DBOF Resale Account

DFAS Columbus Center performs the disbursing function for DeCA funds with the
exception of the European Region and TBO/TFO or cross disbursements. For CONUS
resale commercial accounts processed by the DeCA service centers the disbursement
transactions to STANFINS and the voucher and check producing information is passed
electronically from the East Service Center computer operations to DFAS Columbus
Center for update of the accounting records and producing the voucher and check. The
DeCA service centers retain the backup payment documentation. DFAS Columbus Center
produces the check and the voucher and mails the payment to the vendor. DFAS Colum-
bus Center provides check numbers to the service centers to update the automated bills
register in SAVES

Commissary collections affect the three types of funds received by DeCA. The daily
commissary sales receipts and surcharge collections (i e, 5 percent added at checkout to
patron’s purchases) are deposited into the DBOF Commissary Resale fund and the Sur-
charge Collections fund, respectively The redemption of merchandise coupons represents
a collection for the commissary resale (i.e., reimbursement for face value of coupon) and
the DBOF Commissary Operations fund (i.c., reimbursement of the handling costs). The
sale of cardboard and excess commissary equipment represents eamings to the Surcharge
Collections fund. Discounts earned on the payment of resale subsistence commercial
accounts are transferred to the Surcharge Collections fund as earnings. Additionally, fees
from merchandising agreements with manufacturers for store shelf space allocation are
transferred to the Surcharge Collections fund as earnings

Fiscal year 1992 represents the first year that the Defense Commissary Agency has
prepared financial statements as required by Section 252 of Title 10, United States Code
The accompanying financial statements account for all funds for which the Agency is
responsible  The audited financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of account-
ing as required by Title 2, “Accounting Principles and Standards” of the Policy and
Procedures Manual for Guidance of Federal Agencies, published by the U.S. General
Accounting Office
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Note 2: Fund Balances with Treasury, Cash and Foreign Currency

A Fund Balances with Treasury

(1) Trust Funds
(2) Revolving Funds $511,311,014
(3) Appropriated Funds

(4) Other Fund Types
Total $511,311,014

B Cash

(1) Restricted Cash
(2) Unrestricted Cash
Total

C Foreign Currency
D Other Information:

(1) The Fund Balance with Treasury does not include $3,100,000 contingent appropri-
ated for acquisition of war reserves.

(Z) The cash balance reflects net outlays for the fiscal year, and is understated by
unconfirmed deposits of $198,079,958. The unconfirmed deposits are reflected as parnt of
Accounts Receivable, Federal. Additional detaiis are provided in the Supplemental Finan-
cial and Management Information.
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Note 3;: Inventories

(1) 2) (3) 4

A Inventory Inventory Allowance Inventory Valuation

Categories Amount for Net Method

Losses

(1) Inventory Held

for Sale $803,521,917 $803,521,917 FIFO
(2) Inventory Not

Held for Saie

(a) Own Use

(b) Stockpile

Matenals

(¢) Other

(3) Total $803.521,917 $803,521,917

B Other Information: DeCA Resale inventory includes totals capitalized from the prior
military Services, and current year acquisitions/gains less sales and losses. The reliability
of totals presented here are addressed in-depth in the Supplemental Financial and Manage-
ment Information

Note 4;: Receivables

A Accounts Receivable

(1) Federal $285,137,712
(2) Non-Federal 124,614,127
Total $409.751,839

B. Other Information: The Federal receivable amount includes unconfirmed deposits of

$198,079,958, and is thus overstated by that amount. (See note 2 above). This condition
is caused by a programmed posting error in the accounting system, which is addressed in

more detail in the Supplemental Financial and Management Information
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Note 5: Other Funded Liabilities

A Other Funded Non-Federal Federal Total
Liabilities
(1) Accounts Payable $781,469,833  $219,599,671  $1,001,069,504

(2) Accrued Payroll

and Benefits
Total $781.469,833 $219,599,671 $1,001,069,504

B Other Information: The non-Federal accounts payable balance reflects a $205 miilion
decrease to bring the control account into balance with the accounts payable subsidiary
account  This adjustment was effected at year end when the control balance was found to
be overstated because of system problems. The reliability of the non-Federal batance is
addressed in the Suppiemental Financial and Management Information

Note 6: Fund Balances:

Commissary
Resale Stacks Total

A Unexpended

Appropriations $465,117,413 $465,117,413
B Invested Capital

C Cumulative Results

of Operations 131,498,464 131,498,464
D Donations

E Transfers £92.016,801 592,016,801
F Total $1.188,632,679 $1,188,632,679

G Other Information: Transfers are comprised of resale stock inventories decapitalized by
the former service commissary systems at the end of FY 92 and capitalized by DeCA
during FY 92 The reliability of the capitalized amount is addressed in the Supplemental
Financiai and Management Information
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Note 7: Operating Expenses

FY 92

A Operating Expenses by Object Classification

(1) Personal Services and Benefits

(2) Travel and Transportation

(3) Rental, Communication, Utilities

(4) Printing and Reproduction

(5) Contractual Services

(6) Supplies and Materials (Operations) $6,029,756,316
(7) Equipment not Capitalized

(8) Grants, Subsidies & Contributions

(9) Insurance, Claims & Indemnities

(10) Other

(11} Total Expenses by Object Classification $6,029,756,316

B Operating Expenses by Program

(1) Commissary Resale Stocks $6,029,756,316
Taotal $6,029,756,316
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PROGRAM PERFORMANCE MEASURES

These overall performance indicators provide a quick glance of FY 92 performance in
specific attributes against goals established for the fiscal year.

PERFORMANCE MEASURES/INDICATORS
'y 1992

GOAL ACTUAL

o CUSTONMIR NSAVINGS: 251, 24
o IN NTOCK RATL: ON D25
INVENTORY LURNS: IN 14
DISCOUNTS EARNED: UNY, Noe
INTEREST PALND: A3 b
OPERATING XPENSLE: 2.0 2T

(SURCTEARGE ) (O SALYS)

COST PER DOLLAR SALES

This performance measure shows appropriated funds expended for each dollar of
commissary sales; expressed as a ratio of appropriated funds to sales. In the financial
reports actual expenses are understated by $64.56 million in identified unrecorded accruals.

DeCA DBOF-CONMSY OPERATIONS

COST PER DOLLAR SALES
(% IN MILLIONS)

[R1kaY

A TRANSPORT AN HON
Nl

STOS )
N T RS

SAN
[STANEAY
N

77

CONSY OPFRNTTONS
STHE )

GROSS STOUK FUNDSALES SOEIN 10000k
TOTAL ANCTE N DNPENSES STOSS [aoui)
COSEPER DOLE AR OF SANLES S 170 GOANY - SN 177
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CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

This performance measure shows customer responses to twelve survey questions.
Resuits are expressed as a mean average on a scale of 1 to 5 (outstanding to unsatisfac-

tory)

COMMISSARY SURVEY STATISTICS
FY 1992

The following information is the survey results of 894 commissary patrons six months
after consolidation of the commissary system Demographics of patrons surveyed: 75%
Active Duty, 24% Retired, 1% Reserve/National Guard.

Service Members - 24%
Family Members - 76%

RATING*
Expansion of commissary hours 3.6
Maximum check-out time of 15 minutes 35
Improved quality of produce 34
Improved quality of meat department 34
Expanded selection in meat department 34
Increased savings on general grocery 33
Consistently well stocked shelves 3.2
Are managers more available 34
Improvements since October 1, 1991 34
Are shelf price tags easy to find 2.3
Are shelf price tags easy to read 23
How does commissary compare with favorite local supermarket 3.0

5) Outstanding 4) Better 3) No Change 2) Worse 1) Unsatisfactory
*The figures reflect mean averages for each answer

SHOPPING TIME PREFERENCE

RESPONSE NUMBER PERCENTAGE
Weekdays 635 72%
Weekends 145 16% |
Evenings 100 11%
SHOPPING FREQUENCY

CATEGORY NUMBER PERCENTAGE
Daily 38 4%
Weekly 645 73%
Monthly 180 20%
Rarely 16 2%

— e ————————————— e
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OBLIGATIONS TO SALES COMPARISON

This performance measure shows the value of resale stock fund dollars expended to
replace inventory sold to commissary patrons, minus inventory drawdowns due to patron
base reductions and inventory management efficiencies. It is expressed as a ratio of inven-
tory orders to sales The objective ratio for commissary resale stocks in FY 92 was .995.
(Sales are exclusive of coupon handling fees of $20.7 million.)

COMMISSARY RESALESTOCK
OBLIGATIONS/SALES COMPARISON

NHLTHONS
D :

SO ]

oo !

Sk g

TN

OC 1 NN DO EAWN HER MR APROANTAY nN b AL S

SALTS OBLIG A TIONS
PURCTNT OGN EE ) e
( AR} \[ AT L
SALES OBLIGATIONS
October $233 $136
November $749 $449
December $1,133 $936
January $1,776 $1,606
February $2,446 $2,139
March $3,097 $2,716
April $3,679 $3,252
May $4,169 $3,766
June $4.530 $4,279
July $4.885 $5,139
Il August $5.379 $5,628
September $6.157 $6,234
/e
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OPERATING EFFICIENCY ATTRIBUTES

Cost performance against FY 92 cost objectives are outlined below  This attribute
shows the degree to which fund cost performance was met when compared against the cost
objectives  Anticipated costs for the Commissary Operations account are based on a fixed
percentage of projected store sales; for FY 92, the cost objective was 17.7% of store sales.
The abjective cost per doliar of sales for the resale account was set at 99.5% If adjusted
for unrecorded accruals, the actual would be 18 1%.

e
DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY BUSINESS OPERATING FUND
COMMISSARY OPERATIONS
OPERATING EFFICIENCY ATTRIBUTE
(Thousands)
1992 1992
Unit Cost Goal Actual

Inventory Control Point

Operations
Depot Issues and Receipts
Other Depot Costs Included

in Sales:
COSIS Inspections
COSIS Line Item Managed
Material/Other Costs of

Sales
Material $1 (090,600 $1,055,1809
Customer Returns with Credit
TOTAL SALES COSTS $1.090,600 $1,055,180.9
Workload: Gross Stock Fund Sales $6.160,000 $6,178,493.6
Cost Per Dollar of Sales 177 171
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—— Attt ———————_————————————t——————————————_—————r————————————————————_r—————————— et AT PR ——
F DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY BUSINESS OPERATING FUND ]
COMMISSARY RESALE STOCK
OPERATING EFFICIENCY ATTRIBUTE
(Thousands)
1992 1992
Unit Cost Goal Actual
Inventory Control Point
Operations
Depot Issues and Receipts
Other Depot Costs Included
in Sales:
COSIS Inspections
COSIS Line ltem Managed
Material/Other Costs of
Sales
Material $6,129,200 $6,029,756.3
Customer Returns with Credit
TOTAL SALES COSTS $6,129 200 $6,029,756.3
Workload: Gross Stock Fund Sales $6,160,000 $6,178,493 6
Cost Per Dollar of Sales 995 976
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Supplemental  VI-7-13

ASSET MANAGEMENT
EFFICIENCY RATIO

This attribute is an overall measure of the entity’s asset position. When used in con-
junction with other balance sheet measures, such as acid test and inventory turnover ratio,
the asset management efficiency ratio can be used to determine optimum asset levels. For
resale inventaries, maintaining well-balanced stockage levels ensures the best use of re-
sources, and assures greater payback to the entity over time by minimizing losses through
avoiding excessive inventory maintenance costs

Note: For accounts receivable, the ratio shown here is inflated by the value of uncon-
firmed deposits. See notes to the principal statements - Commissary Resale Stocks. Public
Receivables are only used in computing the average The average inventory-on-hand
excludes paid in transit inventory enroute to OCONUS commissaries, CDCs and on order
inventory

DEFENSE COMMISSARY BUSINESS FUND - ASSET MANAGEMENT
’ EFFICIENCY ATTRIBUTE
; (Thousands)
FISCAL YEAR 1992
Cost of Goods Sold Expense $6,029,756 3
Average Inventory 444 4
¢ Inventory Turnover Ratio 13 6 or 27 days
i Sales Revenue $6,178,493.6
Average Accounts Receivable
During Year $88,523
Accounts Receivabie
Tumover Ratio 69.8 or 5 days
Operating Cycle = Inventory
Turnover Ratio + Accounts
Receivable Tumover Ratio
(days) 32 days
—— — e
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Audit Team Members

Shelton R. Young  Director, Logistics Support
Robert J. Ryan Program Director
Walter R. Loder Project Manager
Joseph A. Powell  Auditor

Samuel D. Brister ~ Auditor

Eva L. Daniel Auditor

Cheryl D. Smith Auditor

Denise E. Baldridge Auditor

Beeson P. Cho Auditor

Ellen P. Hamm Auditor

Sharon S. Jarrett Auditor

Virginia G. Rogers Auditor

Sheryl L. Martz Auditor

Mark Starinsky Auditor



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

